
 
 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
Damian Allen 
Chief Executive 
 
Issued on: Wednesday 30th August 2023 
 
Governance Officer for this meeting: Christine Rothwell 
 Tel. 01302 735682 
 
City of Doncaster Council 
www.doncaster.gov.uk 

 
 

Agenda 
____________________________________________________________________ 
To all Members of the 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 
Notice is given that a Meeting of the above Committee is to be held as follows: 

  
Venue:   Council Chamber, Civic Office, Waterdale, Doncaster, DN1 3BU 
 
Date:      Thursday, 7th September, 2023 
 
Time:      10.00 am 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
BROADCASTING NOTICE 
 
This meeting is being filmed for subsequent broadcast via the Council’s web 
site. The Council is a Data Controller under the Data protection Act and images 
collected during this recording will be retained in accordance with the Council’s 
published policy.    
 
Please be aware that by entering the meeting, you accept that you may be 
filmed and the images used for the purpose set out above. 
 
 
 
 
  

Public Document Pack



 

Items for discussion 
 

1. Apologies for absence.  

 

 
2. To consider the extent, if any, to which the public and press are to be 

excluded from the meeting.  
 

 
3. Declarations of Interest, if any.   
 
4. Minutes from the Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management 

Committee held on 1st June 2023 (Pages 1 - 4). 
 

 
5. Public Statements.   
 [A period not exceeding 20 minutes for statements from up 

to 5 members of the public on matters within the 
Committee’s remit, proposing action(s) which may be 
considered or contribute towards the future development of 
the Committee’s work programme].  
 

 

 
A. Reports where the public and press may not be excluded.  
 

 
 
6. Annual Complaint and Compliment Report 2022/23 (Pages 5 - 46).  
 
7. Overview and Scrutiny Work Plan and the Council's Forward Plan of 

Key Decisions (Pages 47 - 64) 
 

 
 
 
 
MEMBERSHIP OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 

 
Chair – Councillor Jane Kidd 
Vice-Chair – Councillor Jake Kearsley 
 
Councillors Gemma Cobby, Steve Cox, Leanne Hempshall, Richard A Jones, 
Majid Khan and Glynis Smith 
 
 
Education Co-optees* 
 
Antoinette Drinkhill 
Bernadette Nesbit 
 
 
*Education Co-optees are invited to attend the meeting and vote on any Education 
functions which are the responsibility of the Authority’s Executive. They may also 
participate in but not vote on other issues relating to Children and Young People. 



 

DONCASTER METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY, 1ST JUNE, 2023 
 

A MEETING of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE was 
held at the COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC OFFICE, WATERDALE, DONCASTER 
DN1 3BU, DONCASTER on THURSDAY, 1ST JUNE, 2023 at 11.00 AM 

 
PRESENT: 
 
Chair - Councillor Jane Kidd 

 
Councillors Jake Kearsley, Gemma Cobby, Steve Cox, Richard A Jones and 
Glynis Smith 
 
Co-optees – Antoinette Drinkhill (Church of England Education representative)  
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
• Riana Nelson, Director of Children, Young People and Families 
• Andy Hood, Strategic Lead (Practice and Improvement) 
• Helen Jones, Service Manager Young People’s Services  

 
  ACTION  
1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  

 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors 
Leanne Hempshall and Majid Khan. 
 

 

 
2   TO CONSIDER THE EXTENT, IF ANY, TO WHICH THE PUBLIC AND 

PRESS ARE TO BE EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING.  
 

 

 None. 
 

 
 
3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY.  

 
 

 There were no declarations of interest made. 
 

 
 
4   PUBLIC STATEMENTS.  

 
 

 There were no public statements made. 
  

 
 
5   YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN 2023/24  

 
 

 The purpose of this report was to present the statutory Youth Justice 
Plan for 2023/24, covering the work of the Youth Offending Service 
(YOS) in Doncaster.  An outline of performance against last year’s plan 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 

was provided around performance indicators such as Reoffending data 
and First Time Entrants.  
  
I have detailed below, for your information, some of the key areas and 
comments raised by the Committee during the meeting. 
  
Finance – Members were reassured that with the current allocation of 
grants remaining unchanged and no unforeseen financial pressures, 
and there would be sufficient funds to continue the positive work being 
undertaken and meet the necessary targets.  It was commented that 
there was often a delay in the allocation nationally of the Ministry of 
Justice grants.  Members were also informed that the Council 
continued to provide its contribution, which overmatched the grant and 
that partners in health and the police continued to be supportive with 
either the allocation of direct resources or through financial means.  
Finally, Members were informed of the allocation of Turnaround 
funding which would provide further opportunities going forward.  
Members welcomed the strong partnership working currently in place 
and recognised how that has helped ensure better value for money 
across the service.  
  
Support for Children (before or when they come into contact with 
the Criminal Justice System) – Members stressed the importance of 
providing good support to children either prior or during the period 
when they come into contact with the Criminal Justice System.  It was 
explained that the delivery model was based on knowledge of what had 
worked well within the Youth Offending Service and included 
assessment of individual needs.  Reference was made to the benefits 
of the interventions delivered through the Turnaround Programme and 
how it had helped improve outcomes for children at risk of entering the 
Criminal Justice System such as the use of a whole family assessment, 
looking at financial pressures in the home and supporting parents.  
Members also heard about the value and benefit of speech and 
language interventions and systematic family therapy.  It was explained 
how this model could help young people within the statutory service out 
of offending and with those at risk of offending.  In terms of speech and 
language therapy, Members were informed about the dedicated 
resource in place that supported this and how it was hoped that this 
provision would be expanded in the financial year of this turnaround. 
  
A Member asked about what opportunities were available to broaden 
the experience of young people and spoke about the benefits of such 
schemes as the National Citizen Service (NCS).  Members heard that 
young people did not always want to engage with universal services.  
Reference was made to EPIC who engaged with those young people 
at risk of entering the system through the work they did within the 
communities and schools. 
  

Transfer of Children’s Social Care – Members were pleased to hear 

Page 2



 

about the benefits and opportunities that had arisen from the transfer of 
the Doncaster Children Services Trust to the Council. Some of the key 
benefits included closer working and greater access to a wide expanse 
of expertise that supported the long-term deliverability and 
sustainability of the strategy.  Reference was made to the challenges 
that had been experienced with the Mosaic system due to there being 
two separate organisations trying to work together.  Members were 
informed that improvements had been made since the system had 
been transferred over. 

EPIC Hub and Partnership Working – Members heard about the 
continued success and positive feedback of the EPIC hub for young 
people that was based in the Frenchgate Shopping Centre.  It was 
explained how the hub was used as a space not just for the Council but 
for other partners such as Doncaster College, to engage with young 
people around areas such as education and careers.  Members 
received an insight into the initiatives undertaken and better 
opportunities to access services through working in partnership and 
forming positive relationships. 
 
PACE (Police and Criminal Evidence) Beds – An outline was 
provided to Members around the purpose of PACE Beds and the 
arrangements that Doncaster had in place with Sheffield and 
Manchester.  It was commented that PACE Beds presented ongoing 
challenges for many local authorities nationally including Doncaster. 

Restorative Justice - Members heard about the role of the Restorative 
Practitioner as well as the process and options involved.   It was 
recognised that although restorative justice could work well, it might 
benefit further from increased victim involvement.  It was noted that the 
pandemic had resulted in delays to cases moving forward, resulting in 
less victim involvement which was seen as a national issue, it was 
commented this was now seen to be improving. 

Links between Youth Offending Scheme and Schools - Members 
heard that there was an Education Co-ordinator who advocated for 
young people to ensure that they had suitable provision in place.  
Reference was made to the EPIC school that supported those young 
people at risk of permanent exclusion through a 12 week offer and 
prepared them for a return to mainstream school.  This could include 
speech and language assessment and assessment of needs.  A 
Member enquired whether anything like restorative practice took place 
in schools with children.  It was responded that this only took place in 
the event where the offense directly resulting in the exclusion that a 
similar approach might be used.  It was continued that as part of a 
restorative offer, schools themselves may adopt principles of 
restorative practice but it was not possible to deliver through the 
Council with limited resources in this area.  It was viewed that overall, 
the children’s system was moving in that direction.  
 
Employment, Education and Training - Members were provided with 

Page 3



 

assurances that there were strategies in place to ensure that those 
leaving the youth justice system had opportunities to access 
employment, education and training.  In terms of apprenticeships, it 
was explained that the Council and St Leger Homes Doncaster (SLHD) 
offered apprenticeships as part of dedicated Careers Advice Support to 
those within the Criminal Justice System (up to 19 years old for any 
child referred into the Pathways to Progression Programme).  A 
Member spoke about the benefits of involving young people who 
exhibited challenging behaviour in undertaking housing repairs.   It was 
felt that as well as developing useful trade skills, this had also given 
them positive responsibilities and helped develop a level of personal 
accountability.  The Strategic Lead (Practice and Improvement) 
responded that there was potential in engaging these young people 
into something similar with the Council and SLHD as part of the 
reparation offer.  
 
There was a brief discussion around areas that maybe of interest to 
scrutiny such as YOS triage and PACE beds. 
  

RESOLVED:  That the draft Youth Justice Plan 2023/24, be 
approved 

 
 

Page 4



 

Report 
 

 

Date: 7th September 2023 

To the Chair and Members of the Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee  
 
Report Title: Annual Complaint and Compliment Report 22/23 
 

Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 

Wards Affected Key Decision? 

Councillor Jane Nightingale  No 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1. The purpose of this report is to summarise complaints and compliment information 
relating to 2022/23 for Doncaster Council and partners. This includes the Council, 
St Leger Homes of Doncaster (SLHD) and Doncaster Culture and Leisure Trust 
(DCLT). It also seeks to identify the key areas that are the subject of complaints 
and what measures have been taken to improve as a result of that feedback where 
required. It also provides the current position with regard to the Unreasonable 
Behaviour Policy. Appendix 1 includes the full Complaint and Compliment report 
and Appendix 2 includes a copy of the Local Government & Social Care 
Ombudsman (LGSCO) Annual Letter to Doncaster Council published in July 
relating to performance in 22/23.  
 

2. Across all the organisations in 2022/23, we saw a decrease in the number of 
complaints received by a cumulative 459, resulting in 2,398 complaints being 
received compared to 2,857 in the previous year. The key improvements resulting 
from the feedback in 22/23 are: 

 
Doncaster Council 
 
 

• In AHWB: Adult Social Care Duty Teams, concerns were raised around 
inconsistency of workers in the teams as a result there has been 
implementation of practice guidance across all teams to ensure that there is a 
consistent handover process, which includes the communication within the 
Mosaic system and the creation of a duty email inbox for each team to support 
managers when covering another team  
 

• Following a recent upheld decision and recommendation by the Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman, the planning team spoke to 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



members of staff in relation to decision making processes caused by deviations 
from approved plans. The planning team have been instructed to document all 
relevant information when carrying out site inspections particularly any on site 
discussions with the builder which may show deviations from the submitted 
plan. 
 

• Enforcement Officers who issue Fixed Penalty Notices to members of the public 

have received training on how to approach and address the public, officers also 

now ask people how they wish to be addressed. 

 

• To improve the service to families moving into area children who are classed 

as Children Missing Education are identified immediately and monitored 

through a weekly cross service meeting involving Special Educational Needs 

(SEN), Virtual School and Education Welfare. SEN cases are reported to the 

responsible Head of Service with agreed actions to ensure the child/young 

person is receiving full time educational provision that can meet needs. These 

processes must take place within the statutory timescale.  

 

Doncaster Children’s Services Trust 
 

• A young person was unhappy about how their change in social worker had been 
handled including a worker leaving and informing them via email.  The 
opportunity was taken to remind all social workers, working with children in 
care, to ensure they spoke to their children directly before leaving. 

 

• Lessons have been learnt about the level of support needed by young people 
in care/care leavers who are about to become parents themselves, and this has 
informed service delivery.  The opportunity has also been taken to address the 
assumption of some, that the unborn child of these parents is automatically at 
risk, or that these parents would not be able to care for their own child when the 
child is born.  Whilst the availability of other services for expectant parents is 
outside the control of children’s social care, understanding and responding to 
the anxieties of these young people is within children’s social care’s control and 
having an agreed clear and timely plan in place provides much needed 
reassurance to all parties. 

 

• Complaints received where the main presenting theme is ‘actions of worker’, 
‘poor communication’ and ‘decision making’ often relate, in part, to information 
that has been included in an assessment that has been undertaken by a social 
worker.  To inform the development of assessment training for children’s social 
workers feedback was shared from complaints to ensure the opportunity was 
taken to culturally reinforce lessons learnt. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
St Leger Homes of Doncaster 
 

Page 6



• SLHD has continued with the changes in the delivery of the repairs service in 
February 2023, by combining the scheduled repairs teams with the responsive 
repair teams. This improves the availability of trade resources, which means 
they can be more responsive to demand. This also improves communication as 
customers now receive an appointment at the first point of contact, as well as 
a confirmation text and text reminder. 
 

• To further improve how SLHD engage and deal with customers it launched an 
in-house customer excellence training programme in February 2023 and all 
employees will attend this training. The training content was informed by tenant 
discovery sessions held with tenant representatives. 
 

• SLHD have commenced their Journey to Excellence programme. The overall 
aim of the project is to improve the customer journey for those who are 
homeless or at risk of homelessness and promote the prevention agenda. 
Working with customers to help them remain in their own homes by assisting 
with tenancy management and helping them to ensure their income is 
maximised. As a result of this, at the end of 22/23 SLHD saw the lowest number 
of households in B&B accommodation, reducing to 16. SLHD will continue to 
work on this journey to excellence. 

 
Doncaster Culture and Leisure Trust 
 

• DCLT have seen a decline in membership complaints since transferring over to 
in-house membership collections from a third-party provider in July 2022, 
meaning that all customer queries either at site or through the Contact Centre 
are dealt with more promptly and more accurate information is now available. 

 

• DCLT continues to receive complaints with regards to swimming lesson 
cancellations, despite attempts to resolve this there are still shortages with 
recruitment of swimming teachers. DCLT have completed recruitment drives, 
have substantially increased hourly rates and have worked with swimming 
clubs to try and bring more teachers into the business. The number of skilled 
teachers continues to be a national problem in this sector. 
 

• DCLT has received complaints with regards to the volume of youth fitness 

members they have in the gyms. It is recognised that despite the complaints 

they receive, it is essential that they continue to offer a youth package. 

Approximately a third of children aged 2-15 are overweight or obese and DCLT 

support the UK Chief Medical Officer's recommendation of all young people 

engaging in an hour of daily physical activity. DCLT are aware of the popularity 

of these memberships and are acting where necessary to improve the 

experience for all and they expect their teams to be challenging any 

inappropriate actions. Updates have been made to their member etiquette 

requirements that all members must follow, and staff must monitor. This 

etiquette is displayed on banners around the gym and on posters throughout 

the gym area.  

 
EXEMPT REPORT 

Page 7



 
3. N/A 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

This report recommends consideration and comment on the complaints and 
compliment report for the period 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023.  
 
WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 

4. Insight from complaints plays a key role in how we deliver the right outcome to our 
citizens and in continually improving our service delivery. As well as putting things 
right for the individual service user, we learn from complaints in order to improve 
services for the future. 

 
BACKGROUND 

 

5. The aim of complaint procedures is to resolve any dissatisfaction promptly, 

effectively and transparently and to inform service improvements to prevent service 

users experiencing the same issues in the future. The Council, SLHD and DCLT 

all have complaint policies and procedures. They also have officers who are 

responsible for ensuring the complaint and compliment processes are followed and 

are available to support customers and staff to ensure that making a complaint is 

as easy as possible for all concerned. 

6. The LGSCO carried out detailed investigations on 19 applications, 10 were upheld 
in the customers favour, 7 were not upheld and 2 are still being investigated. Of 
the 10 cases that have been upheld, in 100% of cases the LGSCO were satisfied 
that CDC and SLHD had successfully implemented their recommendations when 
a complaint was upheld. 

7. In July we received the LGSCO’s Annual Letter outlining our performance in 22/23, 
in which the LGSCO have raised a number of concerns about how the council 
responded to some of their enquiries. We have been in contact with the LGSCO to 
gain further understanding about the comments they have raised, to ensure that 
we learn from the LGSCO and introduce service improvements to prevent such 
occurrences happening in the future. We are also arranging training courses with 
the LGSCO for officers who investigate and respond to complaints across the 
council.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8.   Summary of Complaint and Compliment Information    
 

Page 8



Number of Complaints received and outcomes 

 

Stage 1 Complaints 

Percentage of Stage 1 

complaints Upheld / Partially 

Upheld 

Escalated / Stage 2 

Complaints 

 
20/21 21/22 22/23 20/21 21/22 22/23 20/21 21/22 22/23 

CDC 460 815 736 60% 56% 65% 22 38 51 

SLHD 845 1183 1302 28% 38% 26% 25 33 26 

DCST 151 169 116 34% 43% 32% 1 3 1 

DCLT 321 690 244 n/a n/a 80% 87 n/a 148 

 

Breakdown by CDC Directorates  

 
Stage 1 Complaints 

 
20/21 21/22 22/23 

Corporate Resources 76 133 149 

Economy and Environment 298 546 450 

Adults Health and Wellbeing 54 85 72 

Children, Young People and Families 32 51 64 

Public Health n/a n/a 1 

 

Number of Compliments received 

Organisation 
Compliments 

2020/21 
Compliments 

2021/22 
Compliments 

2022/23 

CDC 423 418 403 

SLHD 107 124 223 

DCST 265 211 74 

DCLT 28 43 27 

TOTAL 823 796 727 

 

 

 

 

9. The key priorities for the staff who co-ordinate this feedback will be to continue to 

provide an expert service in complaint handling, promoting the sharing of good 

practice as well as poor practice so that lessons can be learned. There will also be a 

Page 9



focus on reducing complaints through service improvements, which in turn should 

reduce the number of complaints being upheld or partially upheld. 

 

OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

10.There are no options to consider in this report. The main objective is to 
communicate the 2022/2023 complaint and compliment information for Doncaster 
Council and its partners. 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 

11. N/A 
 
 
IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES 

12.   

Great 8 Priority  
Positive 
Overall 

Mix of 
Positive & 
Negative 

Trade-
offs to 

consider 
– 

Negative 
overall 

Neutral or 
No 

implications 

 

Tackling Climate 
Change ✓    

The increase in digital channels contributes to a reduced need for residents to 

travel to Council offices.  

 

Developing the skills 
to thrive in life and in 
work 

   ✓ 
 

 

Making Doncaster the 
best  
place to do business 
and create good jobs 

   ✓ 

 

 

Page 10



 

Building opportunities 
for  
healthier, happier and 
longer lives for all 

✓    

Complaints and compliments provide an opportunity for people in Doncaster to 

highlight their good and bad experiences with an aim to improve their own and 

others experience. Varying channels and opportunities for customers to make 

complaints and give compliments increases the opportunity to hear a range of 

experiences. 

 

 
Creating safer, 
stronger,  
greener and cleaner  
communities where 
everyone belongs 

✓    

Complaints and compliments both provide valuable customer feedback to put any 
failure right, implement the resulting improvement and to celebrate an outstanding 
quality of service. This applies to everything we do and all services involved in 
delivering all our priorities. 
 

Nurturing a child and  
family-friendly 
borough 

✓    
Customer feedback and service improvements introduced as a direct result of this 
feedback, contributes to improving how services related to nurturing a child and 
family-friendly borough can be accessed.  

 

Building Transport 
and digital 
connections fit for the 
future 

✓    

This strategy further contributes to the availability of evolving modern digital 
Council services for those who wish to and can use them. 

 Promoting the 
borough and its 
cultural, sporting, and 
heritage opportunities 

   ✓ 

 

Fair & Inclusive ✓    

Page 11



It is essential that Complaint processes and procedures ensure that the experience 
of customers is fair and inclusive. 
 
 

 

Legal Implications [Officer Initials: SRF | Date: 21.06.23  ] 

13. The Council has a number of legal duties in relation to complaints, particularly in 
relation to Local Government Ombudsman findings. The Monitoring Officer has 
detailed duties in relation to findings of maladministration under the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local Government Act 1974. The 
Council also has a specific duty set out in law to publish an annual report of 
complaints made in relation to Children’s Services. Complaints are increasingly 
seen as a valuable tool to be used by organisations to better understand their 
services and to ensure that lessons can be learnt from customer complaints, 
feedback, and services improved.  

 

Financial Implications [Officer Initials: AG | Date:  22.06.23] 

14. There are no direct financial implications resulting from this report. If service 
improvements are required, these should be addressed by each service within 
existing budget levels. 

 

Human Resources Implications [Officer Initials: KG | Date: 21.06.23] 

15. There are no specific HR issues raised in this report. 
 

Technology Implications [Officer Initials:  PW | Date: 22.06.23 ] 

16. There are no technology implications in relation to this report 

Health Implications [Officer Initials RL l Date:21.06.23] 

17. Good governance is important for healthy organisations and for healthy 

populations. Effective systems to respond to complaints and compliments 

demonstrate not only a responsive learning culture but also allows specific health 

issues to be addressed. 

 

RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

18.  If we fail to learn lessons and effectively analyse the information we receive 
through our complaints to inform improved service delivery, the following could 
occur: 

• Doncaster residents may not receive the standard of service delivery they 
expect and deserve; and 

• An increased risk of maladministration. 

Page 12



 
CONSULTATION 

19. This report will be considered by the Chief Executive, Directors, the Executive 
Board and the Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee.  

 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

20. Appendix 1: Annual Complaint & Compliment Report 2022/2023 
  Appendix 2: Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman Annual Letter  
 
 

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 
 
21.  AHWB: Adults Health and Well Being Directorate 
   CALDT: Community Adult Learning Disability Team 
       CDC: City of Doncaster Council  
   CYPF: Children, Young People and Families 
   DCLT: Doncaster Culture and Leisure Trust 
   DCST: Doncaster Children’s Services Trust 
   EHCP: Education, Health and Care Plan 
   LGSCO: Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
   NRT: Neighborhood Response Team 
   OT: Occupational Therapy 
   SEND: Special Education Needs and Disabilities 
   SLHD: St Leger Homes of Doncaster 
   
 
   
REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS 
  
Steven Jones, CDC Customer Experience Officer 
Charlotte Otter, CDC Customer Experience Officer 
Dawn Jones, CDC Customer Experience Manager 
Nicky Harvey, SLHD Customer Experience Service Manager 
Toni Illman, DCLT Head of Digital Innovation & Funding 
 
Dulcie Aulton, Head of Customer Service  
Email address: Dulcie.aulton@doncaster.gov.uk 
 
 
Lee Tillman – Assistant Director Policy, insight and Change 
      

Page 13

mailto:Dulcie.aulton@doncaster.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual Complaints and Compliments Report 2022/23 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



 
 
 
 

                                                                                  

1. Introduction 

The purpose of this report is to summarise complaints and compliment information for 2022/23 for 

the City of Doncaster Council (CDC) and partners. This includes the Council, St Leger Homes of 

Doncaster (SLHD) and Doncaster Culture and Leisure Trust (DCLT). 

The aim of complaint procedures is to resolve any dissatisfaction promptly, effectively and 

transparently and to inform service improvements to prevent service users experiencing the same 

issues in the future. The Council, SLHD and DCLT all have complaint policies and procedures. They 

also have officers who are responsible for ensuring the complaint and compliment processes are 

followed and are available to support customers and staff to ensure that making a complaint is as 

easy as possible for all concerned. These officers also ensure we respond to enquiries and 

investigations from the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO). 

The Council’s definition of a complaint is: 
 
“An expression of dissatisfaction, however made, about the standard of service, actions or 
lack of action taken by the Council or their staff, which affects a customer or a group of 
customers” 
 
All Councils have a duty to provide available access to residents to report concerns and must 
investigate and respond within a reasonable and defined timescale. 
 
2. Complaints Procedure  
 
The following Complaint Procedure relates to all the organisations; however, complaints relating to 
Children’s Social Care have a different statutory procedure, which is detailed later in this section. 
 

Early Resolution 
 
Complaints that can be fully resolved to the complainant’s satisfaction within 3 working days is the 
Council’s preferred method of dealing with complaints. We aim to deal with the majority of complaints 
by early resolution. However, the Council will need to deal with some complaints through a formal 
investigation approach due to their complexity. 
 

Stage 1 – Local Resolution 
 
At this stage, a senior officer within the service area will investigate the complaint and send a full 
response to the complainant within 10 working days. In the event a complaint cannot be responded 
to in full by this time, the customer must be updated and an extension recorded with a new due date. 
Any extensions agreed should be shared with the Customer Experience Team who will be 
monitoring the progress of each complaint. 
  

Escalated Complaint Investigation 
 
A complainant can request an escalated complaint investigation if they are unhappy with the 
outcome of the Stage 1 investigation. The Customer Experience Team will liaise with the Head of 
Service to discuss whether there has been any additional information provided by the complainant 
that would require a further review. An independent senior officer would conduct the escalated 
complaint investigation. Their role is to ensure that a thorough investigation is carried out and a full 

Page 16



 
 
 
 

response provided to the complainant within 20 working days (or a pre agreed timescale) of their 
latest communication. The escalated investigation is the end of the Council’s internal complaints 
procedure. There is no further right to appeal to the Council following the issue of a Stage 2 
response. 
 
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) 

Following a full investigation, a complainant can approach the Local Government and Social Care 

Ombudsman (LGSCO). The LGSCO will not usually investigate a complaint unless it has been dealt 

with through the Council’s complaint procedure first and exhausted the internal complaints 

procedure. The option to approach the LGSCO is the third and final stage of the complaints 

procedure and is the final point of contact to attempt resolution of a complaint.  

St Leger Homes of Doncaster may also receive applications from The Housing Ombudsman specific 

to their functions. DCLT do not have an Ombudsman, therefore any Stage 3 complaints are 

investigated and responded to by their Chief Executive. 

Outcome and Resolution  

There are three main categories for classifying the outcome of a complaint, which are as follows: 
 

▪ Upheld: This is where we agree with the concerns raised and as a result, have put measures 
in place to improve service delivery going forward. 
 

▪ Partially Upheld: We agree with some of the issues identified but not all. 
 

▪ Not Upheld: There has been no evidence found to support the allegations of concern. 
 
In cases where a complaint is upheld or partially upheld, an apology is always given for any distress 
or inconvenience caused to the resident. In some instances, the investigator of the complaint may 
recommend that training be carried out for relevant staff members to ensure any knowledge gaps 
are addressed.  

There may also be instances whereby complainants are offered a gesture of goodwill for time and 
trouble in making their complaint. This can be monetary or an appropriate gift. In most cases where 
a fault has been identified and a recommendation made, the Customer Experience Officer will 
monitor this to ensure any agreed action is carried out.  
 
The LGSCO can ask a Council to: 

• Apologise to a customer. 

• provide a service a customer should have had. 

• make a decision the Council should have done before. 

• reconsider a decision the Council did not take properly in the first place. 

• improve the Councils procedures so similar problems do not happen again; or 

• Make a payment to the customer. 

The LGSCO do not have legal powers to enforce the organisations they investigate to follow their 
recommendations however it would be unlikely that an organisation would fail to do so. 

 

Page 17



 
 
 
 

 

Children’s Social Services Statutory Complaint Procedure  

The majority of representations that the council receives regarding the functions of children’s social 
care fall under the statutory complaints procedure. The procedure is defined in The Children Act 
1989 Representations Procedure (England) Regulations 2006. The statutory procedure allows for 
children and young people “to make representations, including complaints about the actions, 
decisions or apparent failings of a local authority’s children’s social services provision. Complaints 
that do not fall under the statutory complaints procedure are generally those matters that do not 
relate to children’s social care involvement or services that are not provided directly by children’s 
social workers.  

Statutory Stage 1 - Local Resolution 

The aim is to resolve as many complaints as possible by the local team at this early stage. The 
Customer Experience Manager should discuss the complaint with the complainant and attempt to 
address the issues as quickly as possible. They should exchange information and thinking behind 
decisions and try to agree a way forward. This should take up to 10 working days, with a maximum 
extension of up to 20 working days for complex complaints. 

Statutory Stage 2 – Investigation 
 
When a complainant is not satisfied with the outcome of Stage 1, they may request that the 
Customer Experience Manager escalate their complaint to a statutory Stage 2 investigation. The 
Customer Experience Manager will then make a decision on whether or not to escalate the complaint 
to Stage 2 based on the evidence provided by the complainant. 
 
If the Customer Experience Manager does not agree to escalate the complaint to Stage 2, they write 
to the complainant and explain why they have made this decision. The complainant is advised of 
their right to contact the LGSCO if they are unhappy with this decision. 
 
The investigation is conducted by an external Investigating Officer who is accompanied by an 
external Independent Person (whose role is to ensure that the investigation is open, transparent and 
fair). Both officers complete a report with their recommendations following the investigation, which 
is passed onto a senior manager within the Council (Adjudicating Officer) for the adjudication 
process. The Adjudicating Officer is a senior manager who does not have management 
responsibility for the service area that has been complained about. 
 
The Adjudicating Officer then considers the reports and responds to the complainant on behalf of 
the Trust. A copy of the Investigating Officer and Independent Person’s reports are also shared with 
the complainant at this stage. The Stage 2 process should be completed within 25 working days, 
although this timescale can be extended to 65 working days for complex complaints. 
 
Statutory Stage 3 – Review panel 
 
Following a full Stage 2 investigation a complainant can request that their complaint is considered 
further by a review panel (Stage 3). The Customer Experience Manager will make a decision on 
whether or not to escalate the complaint to Stage 3 based on the evidence provided by the 
complainant. 

Page 18



 
 
 
 

If the Customer Experience Manager does not agree to escalate the complaint to Stage 3, they write 
to the complainant and explain why they have made this decision. The complainant is advised of 
their right to contact the LGSCO if they are unhappy with this decision. 
 
The review panel should be held within 30 working days of the request. Within 5 working days of 

the review panel meeting the Independent Chair will send a letter to the Chief Executive outlining 

the panel’s findings and recommendations. The Chief Executive will then provide the Council’s final 

response within a further 15 working days. The whole process should take a maximum of 50 working 

days. 

3. High Level Analysis 

Across all the organisations in 2022/23, we saw a decrease in the number of complaints received 

by a cumulative 459, resulting in 2,398 complaints being received compared to 2,857 in the previous 

year. The report includes a comparison to the 2020/21 year, however due to the pandemic impacting 

both residents and services during this period it is not a useful tool of comparison when assessing 

the annual figures year on year. 

Below are accompanying graphs and comments from each organisation showing these figures in 

more detail and providing further information relating to the difference in complaints received for the 

period. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200
1400

CDC DCST DCLT SLHD

20/21 460 151 321 845

21/22 815 169 690 1183

22/23 736 116 244 1302

Stage 1 Complaints Received

20/21 21/22 22/23

0

200

400

600

800

1000

CDC DCST DCLT SLHD

Upheld / Partially Upheld 475 37 195 338

Not Upheld 261 79 49 964

Complaint Outcomes

Upheld / Partially Upheld Not Upheld

Page 19



 
 
 
 

 

 

City of Doncaster Council (CDC) 

As shown in the graph above, CDC did not note any particular month or quarter in which we received 

a peak in complaints, the number stayed quite consistent throughout the year.  

Doncaster Council, in total, saw a decrease of complaints. Below are the percentage increases / 

decreases by directorate:  

• Corporate Resources – Increase of 13% 

• Adults Health and Wellbeing - Decrease of 15% 

• Children, Young People and Families (CYPF) - Increase of 25% 

• Economy and Environment – Decrease of 17% 

 

The average time to resolve complaints across all directorates was just 8 working days. The 

directorate information follows within this report. 

St Leger Homes of Doncaster (SLHD) 
 
SLHD received a total of 1302 complaints this year, which is an increase of 119 from the previous 
year. It is worth noting that notwithstanding the increase compared to 21/22, the number of 
complaints received in the latter part of 22/23 have been reducing. Complaints in Property Services 
reduced in Q4, from 101 in January 2023, to 79 in March 2023 and in Housing Services, comparing 
Q4 22/23 to Q4 21/22, by 45 complaints. 
 

• 77% (998) of the complaints were for Property Services.   

• 23% (296) of the complaints were for Housing and Customer Services.  

• 1% (8) of the complaints were for Corporate Services. 
 

This trend of increasing complaints is consistent with an increase in complaints nationally. 
HouseMark who collate complaint data from all local authorities cite policy changes and publicity 
campaigns such as the 'Make it Right Campaign' which the Government launched in England to 
‘empower social housing residents to raise complaints and seek resolution’ as an impacting factor. 
Nationally, by March 2023, there was an increase of nearly 19% compared to February 2023.  

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

April May June July August September October November December January February March

Complaints per Month

CDC DCST DCLT SLHD

Page 20



 
 
 
 

 
In addition to the government campaign, SLHD ran its own local campaign to raise awareness on 
how to make a complaint – this in keeping with best practice cited in the Housing Ombudsman’s 
Complaints Code.  
 
Doncaster Culture and Leisure Trust (DCLT) 
 
During the year DCLT received a total of 244 complaints, a 64% decrease on the previous year. The 
reason for this is due to a significant change this year in the method of reporting complaints and 
bringing their process in line with CDC’s corporate complaints procedure. Previously DCLT had 
reported all negative feedback as a complaint regardless of if there was any allegation of fault on 
DCLT's behalf. They now record dissatisfaction as customer insight if there has been no allegation 
of failed service. 
 
The majority of complaints for service delivery were the following:  
 

• Cancellation of swimming lessons. 

• Condition of Crookhill Golf Course due to weather conditions. 
• Pool Temperature at The Dome. 
• Balby Sauna and Steam Room.  
• High volume of youths in the gym. 

 
DCLT have seen a decline in membership complaints since transferring over to in-house 
membership collections from a third-party provider in July 2022, meaning that all customer queries 
either at site or through the Contact Centre are dealt with more promptly and more accurate 
information is now available.  
 
DCLT continues to receive complaints with regards to swimming lesson cancellations, despite 
attempts to resolve this there are still shortages with recruitment of swimming teachers. DCLT have 
completed recruitment drives, have substantially increased hourly rates and have worked with 
swimming clubs to try and bring more teachers into the business. The number of skilled teachers 
continues to be a national problem in this sector. 
 
DCLT received a number of complaints throughout the period of October 2022 to March 2023 
regarding pool temperatures at The Dome. This was due to an emerging issue with the pump and 
boilers, that has caused intermittent failure of the heat source. DCLT continue to try and resolve with 
contractors and remedial works. 

 
Children’s Social Care Complaints (formally Doncaster Children’s Service Trust, DCST) 
 

Doncaster Children’s Services Trust moved into the City of Doncaster Council on 1st September 

2022.  

 

During the year Children’s Social Care received 263 contacts, a reduction of 40 contacts compared 

to 2021/22. There were 31 contacts from young people during the year, this is the highest number 

since 2017/18. Of the 263 contacts, 40 were accepted at Stage 1 of the statutory complaints 

procedure, which was 24 less than in 2021/22 and 76 complaints were dealt with through the 

corporate complaints procedure, 29 less than in 2021/22. One statutory complaint was escalated to 

Stage 2 and none were escalated to Stage 3.  

 

Page 21



 
 
 
 

The majority of complaints were received by the Area Child Protection Service teams, followed by 
the Assessment Service. As these teams deal with child protection matters, which is an emotive 
subject and will involve the need for difficult conversations with families, it is expected that these 
may result in complaints being received. These teams also hold the highest proportion of cases.  
 
The top three main presenting themes of statutory complaints were poor communication, decision 

making and delays in receiving services and for corporate complaints they were actions of workers, 

decision making and poor communication.  

 

4. Complaints by Organisation and Service Area 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

   
   
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
7

10
10
10

11
14

15
17

18
23

25
83

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90

Pricing

Membership/DD/Cancellation

Customer Behaviours

Product

Equipment

Temperature

Service Delivery

DCLT: Service Area

1

64

72

149

450

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 450 500

Public Health

CYPF

Adults Health and Wellbeing

Corporate Resources

Economy and Environment

CDC: Service Area

1
1
1
1

2
2
2
2

3
12

17
29

38

Prevention & Participation 

Safeguarding & Performance 

Regional Adoption Agency 

Parenting & Family Support Service

Inspiring Futures

Children in Care

Area Child Protection Service 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

DCST: Service Area

Page 22



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Escalated Complaints 

Although the majority of all complaints will be investigated and resolved at the first stage of the 

complaints procedure, if a customer still feels aggrieved or they have additional evidence they wish 

to provide they can request that their complaint is escalated to Stage 2 of the complaint procedure. 

The Stage 2 investigations are carried out internally. If they are still dissatisfied with the response 

from their Stage 2 investigation, they may then proceed to an independent investigation by the Local 

Government and Social Care Ombudsman. The figures relating to these investigations are as 

follows.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO)  

As a final stage to the Council’s corporate complaint’s procedure, complainants have the right to 

approach the LGSCO following an unsatisfactory Stage 2 response. The LGSCO will direct the 

customer back to the Local Authority if the complainant has not yet given the Council the opportunity 

to resolve the complaint through our complaint’s procedures. The LGSCO may also pass the 

complaint back to the council if they consider that there is more that could be done to resolve the 

complaint.  

The LGSCO will request necessary information from us for review and then will contact the Council 

should they decide that the matter falls within their jurisdiction and wish to investigate further. The 

8

296

998

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200

Corporate Services

Housing & Customer Services

Property Services

SLHD: Service Area

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

CDC DCST DCLT SLHD

51

1

148

2633

10
0 4

Complaint Escalations

Escalated Complaints LGO Application / Investigations

Page 23



 
 
 
 

LGSCO investigate malpractice or poor service and are instructed to comment on or request 

changes to council policies.  

Throughout the year we have been ensuring that any Stage 1 or Stage 2 investigations that were 

carried out within the internal complaint procedure had addressed all the customers concerns 

before the response was sent to the customer. This ensures that if a customer chooses to seek 

independent advice, we have done all we can to improve. In 100% of cases the LGSCO were 

satisfied that CDC and SLHD had successfully implemented their recommendations when a 

complaint was upheld. 

During 2022/23 the LGSCO received 47 complaints across all organisations, of these 19 

investigations were carried out with 10 complaints being upheld.  

The LGSCO publish an annual review letter every year, which details the complaints that they have 

received for each authority.  

Appendix 2 includes a copy of the LGSCO Annual Letter to Doncaster Council published in July 

relating to performance in 22/23  

 

6. Lessons Learned and Service Improvements 

City of Doncaster Council 

As a result of this year’s customer feedback, the following teams have introduced the following 

service improvements to positively impact the services provided by Doncaster Council. 

 

Adults Health & Wellbeing: Community Care & Support  

The highest number of concerns raised were associated to miscommunication in relation to paying 

for care and support. A key theme was about people and their families lack of understanding about 

how and when to pay for care and support. The following service improvements have been 

introduced: 

o Review of staff practice guidance to ensure that workers are aware of the information to share 

with people and who to connect the person with to gain further information and advice.  

o Implementation of the BetterCare web platform that supports people going through the 

process of financial assessments for care and support. It allows people and their family to 

complete their own assessments, informing decision making while ensuring transparency, 

clarity and simplicity throughout. It also allows a person to receive an indicative financial 

contribution that is the estimated maximum amount of money that they will need to pay 

towards their care.  

o The team are currently working to improve the information available on the council’s 

website and developing leaflets providing information on how to pay for care and support. 

o Changes in mosaic practice to improve timescales for financial assessments, particularly for 

direct payments.  

 

 

 

Page 24



 
 
 
 

 

Adults Health & Wellbeing: Community Adult Learning Disability Team  

There have been 6 complaints in 2023 into the CALDT/Transitions Team. The key themes were 

staff communication and knowledge and care providers and their services. The following service 

improvements have been introduced: 

Staff communication and knowledge 

o There has been lots of review of training needs for the team, particularly in relation to 

mental capacity knowledge and the language used to talk to people, linked to the 

statement of purpose and the practice framework.  

o Mandatory adult social care refresher training accessed by the majority of staff. 

o The duty function has been reviewed and ensured that there is consistent practice 

across the team, in relation to follow up of enquiries in a timely way.  

o Communication addressed, and case recording at individual and team meeting levels, 

to ensure all staff are accountable for the work they undertake. 

 

          Care providers and their services 

o Regular contract monitoring meetings with the supported living contracted providers 

where issues are escalated and worked through via feedback from safeguarding, 

clients and staff members, lessons learned are identified from this process.  

o Taking steps with commissioning and contracts to reduce the number of direct 

payments used for supported living, where the providers don’t fall under contract 

monitoring, by looking at a flexible purchasing system, this is in its early stages.  

o Ensuring staff are aware of how to raise professional concerns about care providers, 

and escalating any issues to managers, or safeguarding in a timely way to ensure 

timely response and support from the team. 

Adults Health & Wellbeing: Adult Social Care Duty Teams 
 
Concerns were raised around inconsistency of workers in the duty teams as a result there has been 
implementation of practice guidance across all teams to ensure that there is a consistent handover 
process, which includes the communication within the Mosaic system and the creation of a duty 
email inbox for each team to support managers when covering another team  
 

Corporate Resources:  Council Tax 

 

Council Tax Services received 86 Corporate Complaints during this year, a slight increase on the 

71 received in the previous year. It is worth noting that this service affects the majority of residents 

in Doncaster, 142,000 households currently receive an Annual Council Tax Bill. 

The majority of complaints in relation to Council Tax were disputes in relation to billing and difficulties 

when attempting to contact the service. 

At the beginning of the year Council Tax staff were carrying out additional work such as the 

Government’s Council Tax Energy Rebate Scheme. This naturally caused a backlog of work and 

delays in answering phones and responding to emails. Although the Council Tax team haven’t 

specifically seen any change in the number of Council Tax complaints being logged during this 

period, the nature of the complaints has changed. During the first part of the year the team received 

Page 25



 
 
 
 

more complaints from residents in relation to experiencing difficulties when trying to contact the 

service, in the second half of the year the team have seen a return to more usual complaints around 

billing. 

Service Improvements have been developed and introduced within the team recognising which 

aspects of the service customers were having difficulty accessing and understanding. Specifically, 

work has been carried out to improve Council Tax’s online access including a re-design of the web 

pages to make it easier for customers to understand, reduced jargon and introducing a ‘Chatbot’ to 

navigate the website on behalf of customers.  

 

Children, Young People and Families (CYPF): 

 

CYPF have reviewed their processes surrounding families moving into the City of Doncaster area 

in light of recent Ombudsman recommendations. All children moving into the area are allocated to 

the Locality Officer covering that postcode area. That officer would assume responsibility for 

undertaking the consultation process in line with the Special Educational Needs and Disabilities 

(SEND) Code of Practice and all Teams have been reminded of the agreed moving in process. If 

the setting named in the Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP) is still accessible then this would 

be maintained and this includes residential provision. If the current setting is not accessible the Local 

Authority would place in the closest setting that replicates the provision received in the previous 

Local Authority and that can meet the needs set out in the EHCP. 

 

To improve the service to families moving into area children who are classed as Children Missing 

Education are identified immediately and monitored through a weekly cross service meeting 

involving SEND and Virtual School and Education Welfare. SEND cases are reported to the 

responsible Head of Service with agreed actions to ensure the child/young person is receiving full 

time educational provision that can meet their needs. These processes must take place within the 

statutory timescale.  

 

The Local Authority will publish a 7-year sufficiency strategy and there is a dedicated sufficiency 

work stream reporting directly to the SEN Board. The Local Authority is commissioning additional 

Social, Emotional and Mental Health provision to address the identified shortfall in specialist 

provision within the City of Doncaster. 

 

Economy & Environment: Regulation & Enforcement 

 

Upon receipt of 16 complaints regarding Enforcement Officers attitude to members of the public 

when issuing Fixed Penalty Notices. Although it is not uncommon due to the nature of the role to 

receive these types of complaints, all allegations are investigated and the body worn footage is 

reviewed, meetings take place to discuss these matters internally and thoroughly should malpractice 

be identified. Additional training for all public facing officers has been implemented, including how 

to approach and address individuals, officers also now ask residents how they wish to be addressed.  

 

The majority of complaints received in relation to Doncaster Council’s Licensing service were 

relating to delays in issuing licenses and difficulties when residents were attempting to contact the 

team. Licensing is currently one of the Rapid Improvement Projects included in the Customer 

Experience Strategy Delivery Plan. The project is working with the service to re-design the current 

Page 26



 
 
 
 

processes to enable fully digital end to end transactions and improve the experience of our 

customers.  

 

The Directorate also identified that due to the number of service teams which fall under this area 

and the number of officers responsible for investigating complaints there have been instances where 

complaint responses could have been issued in a timelier manner. To alleviate this going forward 

the team have expanded a job role to include the management of complaints and customer 

feedback, MP and Councillor enquires to ensure relevant timescales are met. 

 

Economy and Environment: Planning 

 

Following a recent upheld decision and recommendation by the Local Government and Social Care 

Ombudsman, the planning team spoke to members of staff in relation to decision making processes 

caused by deviations from approved plans. The planning team have been instructed to document 

all relevant information when carrying out site inspections particularly any on site discussions with 

the builder which may show deviations from the submitted plan. 

 

 

St Leger Homes of Doncaster (SLHD) 

SLHD has successfully implemented changes to its repairs service, following some complaints 

about lack of communication. Customers now receive a call prior to their repair appointment, 

reducing ‘no access’ issues. Customers are now sent an automated survey following the completion 

of the repair to gauge satisfaction with the overall service provided. 85.69% of customers who had 

work carried out in Q4, 22/23 were satisfied with the service they received.  

SLHD has continued with the changes in the delivery of the repairs service in February 2023, by 

combining the scheduled repairs teams with the responsive repair teams. This improves the 

availability of trade resources, which means they can be more responsive to demand. This also 

improves communication as customers now receive an appointment at the first point of contact, as 

well as a confirmation text and text reminder.  

To further improve how SLHD engage and deal with customers it launched an in-house customer 

excellence training programme in February 2023 and all employees will attend this training. The 

training content was informed by tenant discovery sessions held with tenant representatives.  

SLHD have commenced their Journey to Excellence programme. The overall aim of the project is 

to improve the customer journey for those who are homeless or at risk of homelessness and promote 

the prevention agenda. Working with customers to help them remain in their own homes by assisting 

with tenancy management and helping them to ensure their income is maximised. As a result of 

this, at the end of 22/23 SLHD saw the lowest number of households in B&B accommodation, 

reducing to 16. SLHD will continue to work on this journey to excellence.  

 

 

 

 

Page 27



 
 
 
 

 

Doncaster Culture and Leisure Trust (DCLT) 

 
DCLT has received complaints with regards to the volume of youth fitness members they have in 
the gyms. It is recognised that despite the complaints they receive, it is essential that they continue 
to offer a youth package. Approximately a third of children aged 2-15 are overweight or obese and 
DCLT support the UK Chief Medical Officer's recommendation of all young people engaging in an 
hour of daily physical activity. DCLT are aware of the popularity of these memberships and are 
acting where necessary to improve the experience for all and they expect their teams to be 
challenging any inappropriate actions. Updates have been made to their member etiquette 
requirements that all members must follow and staff must monitor. This etiquette is displayed on 
banners around the gym and on posters throughout the gym area.  
 

Doncaster Children’s Services Trust (DCST) 

When a complaint is raised relating to Children’s Social Care services, the complaint is looked into 
and responded to.  In most cases the complaint is resolved locally, an apology is offered and 
information about how the complaint will be addressed is shared if applicable.  Where required, 
suitable management guidance or training is put in place.   However, there are also occasions where 
learning has been identified which has a wider impact and the opportunity is taken to ensure lessons 
are learnt to adapt services to reduce the risk of a matter being subject to complaints in the future.  
Examples of lessons learnt from complaints during 2022/23 are as follows: 
 
On occasion, there has been a breakdown in the relationship between a parent and a child’s social 
worker.  In one case, to support resolution, the Customer Experience Manager asked an 
independent senior manager to review a case file.  The findings of the senior manager were that 
allegations had been investigated appropriately and correct management decisions had been made.  
However, the senior manager also found that some, not all, professionals experienced the parent 
as being hostile and aggressive.  The view of the senior manager was that as an organisation - 
lessons should be learnt from the review to ensure that parent/carers and social work professional 
relationships do not escalate to a point where there becomes an impasse.  As a result of the review 
training was adapted to ensure conflict of this nature is reviewed earlier, where possible, to address 
the issues and reduce the risk of this type of escalation. 
 
A young person was unhappy about how their change in social worker had been handled including 
a worker leaving and informing them via email.  The opportunity was taken to remind all social 
workers, working with children in care, to ensure they spoke to their children directly before leaving. 

 
Lessons have been learnt about the level of support needed by young people in care/care leavers 
who are about to become parents themselves, and this has informed service delivery.  The 
opportunity has also been taken to address the assumption of some, that the unborn child of these 
parents is automatically at risk, or that these parents would not be able to care for their own child 
when the child is born.  Whilst the availability of other services for expectant parents is outside the 
control of children’s social care, understanding and responding to the anxieties of these young 
people is within children’s social care’s control and having an agreed clear and timely plan in place 
provides much needed reassurance to all parties. 
 
A complex complaint crossed a number of service areas including an Area Child Protection Team, 
Special Guardianship Order (SGO) Team, Fostering Team, Kinship Team, Independent Reviewing 

Page 28



 
 
 
 

Service and the court arena.  Working closely with Internal Audit the following actions took place 
which was also informed by lessons learnt from this complaint: 

 

• Relevant policies and procedures were reviewed and updated to reflect lessons learnt and 
to ensure clarity around roles and responsibilities.  This also included financial decision-
making processes and commitment to spend. 

• Referral documents to panels were updated to ensure pertinent information was provided 
to inform decision making. 

• Best social work practice was identified which kept the child at the centre of decision 
making. 

• Stronger links were built between teams to ensure information sharing to support the 
correct procedures being followed from the outset. 

• Processes were reviewed and implemented to ensure a consistent approach to gathering 
information for court to the required standard to inform decision making and avoid the risk 
of any unnecessary delay as a result of children’s social care involvement. 

 
Complaints received where the main presenting theme is ‘actions of worker’, ‘poor communication’ 
and ‘decision making’ often relate, in part, to information that has been included in an assessment 
that has been undertaken by a social worker.  To inform the development of assessment training for 
children’s social workers the following feedback was shared from complaints to ensure the 
opportunity was taken to culturally reinforce lessons learnt: 

 
Assessments should, after prioritising safeguarding: 

• Take into consideration the needs of those being assessed so that any individual 
needs can be met, where appropriate. 

• Take into consideration cultural and religious differences and the potential impact 
of these. 

• Signpost people to appropriate services if support is not provided by children’s 
social care. 

 
Assessments should be – 

• Written in plain English and not be judgemental. 

• Balanced, looking at positives as well as negatives. 

• Clear, for example detail where information has come from or where a professional 
opinion has been shared, if the opinion is not evidenced based. 

• Inclusive of input from both parents, where possible, as well as involved carers. 

• Clear about what/who the risks are. 
 

When completed assessments should be: 

• Written up in a timely way 

• Shared with parents/carers, preferably face to face so a discussion can take place 
about the findings and recommendations so that people understand the next steps 
and ask any questions they may have.   

• Shared through an Advocate when an Advocate is involved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 
 
 
 

 
 

7. Doncaster Council by Directorate 

Corporate Resources 

The Corporate Resources Directorate received 150 corporate complaints in 2022/23.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Revenues and Benefits received a total of 116 complaints, of which 86 were for Council Tax and 30 

were for other services such as Housing Benefits, Business Grants and Business Rates. Although 

there were a considerable number of complaints received for this area compared to other Corporate 

Resource service teams, it is worth noting that this is because this service affects the majority of 

residents in Doncaster with almost all households using at least one service provided by this team. 

Across the Directorate, 89% of all customer complaints were responded to within the timescale of 

10 working days.  

 

 

 

     

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

0

50

100

150

Within 10
Working Days

11-20
Working Days

20+ Working
Days

133

16
1

Working Days to Resolution 

Not Upheld, 
61

Partially 
Upheld, 36

Upheld, 53

Complaint Outcomes

Not Upheld Partially Upheld Upheld

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

Transport Services

Digital and ICT

HR

Legal and Democratic Services

Bereavement Services

Pest Control

Customer Services

Revenues and Benefits

1

1

1

2

6

6

17

116

Corporate Resources Stage 1 Complaints

Page 30



 
 
 
 

 

Escalated Complaints 

Corporate Resources investigated 9 escalated complaints during 2022/23. 

Of these escalated complaints, 8 were related to services provided by Revenues and Benefits. Of 

those 8, 5 were circumvented to the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman as there was 

no further evidence for the Council to consider. 

Of all Corporate Resources complaints that were received last year, 10 customers sought advice 

from the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO).  

Of these 10 cases submitted, 5 investigations were discontinued by the LGSCO, 2 were not upheld, 

2 were upheld and 1 case (Insurance) is still active with a decision yet to be reached by the LGSCO. 

These related to the following service areas: 

• Revenues and Benefits: 9 

• Insurance: 1 

 

 

Compliments 

Doncaster Council have received in total 403 compliments, of which 116 were for teams across 

Corporate Resources. The breakdown of the directorate is below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Economy and Environment 

The Economy and Environment Directorate received 450 complaints in 2022/23, a reduction of over 

100 complaints in the previous year. The services that received the most complaints were those 

which have the largest impact on the majority of the residents in the borough, Waste and Recycling, 

Highways and Street Lighting, Street Cleansing and Fly Tipping. These three services equated for 

65% of all complaints received for this directorate. 

Waste and Recycling received 163 complaints last year, a reduction of 21.5% from last year. 
Although there were a higher number of complaints received for this area compared to other 
services, it is worth noting that this is because this service affects the majority of residents in 
Doncaster with almost all households using services provided by Waste and Recycling. There were 

Customer 
Services, 

98

Revenues 
and 

Benefits, 
18

Compliments

Customer Services Revenues and Benefits

Page 31



 
 
 
 

no particular trends identified in these complaints. The main complaint theme for Highways were 
around road works, road closures and temporary Highways measures across the borough. 
 

Across the Directorate, 77% of all customer complaints were responded to within the timescale of 

10 working days.  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Escalated Complaints 

Economy and Environment received 26 escalated complaints during 2022/23. Of these, 9 were 

circumvented to the LGSCO and 8 were either upheld or partially upheld following a further 

investigation. Of all Economy and Environment complaints that were received and responded to 

over the course of the last year, 14 customers sought the advice from the LGSCO.  

 

Of these 14 cases submitted, 12 investigations were discontinued by the LGSCO and 2 were upheld. 

These related to the following service areas: 

• Highways: 5 

• Planning: 5  

• Building Control: 1 

• Transport: 1 

• Enforcement: 1 

• Licensing: 1 

 

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

Asset Management

Business Doncaster

Major Events

Sustainability

Planning and Development

Environmental Health and Enforcement

Trading Standards and Licensing

Street Scene

Highways and Street Lighting

Waste and Recycling

1

1

1

1

43

54

56

63

102

128

Economy and Environment Stage 1 Complaints

0

100

200

300

400

Within 10
Working Days

11-20 Working
Days

20+ Working
Days

347

85
18

Working Days to Resolution
Not 

Upheld, 
163

Partially 
Upheld, 

110

Upheld, 
177

Complaint Outcomes

Not Upheld Partially Upheld Upheld

Page 32



 
 
 
 

 

Compliments 

Doncaster Council have received in total 403 compliments, of which 184 were for teams across 

Economy and Environment. The breakdown of the directorate is below 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adults Health and Wellbeing (AHWB) 

AHWB received 72 complaints in 2022/23, the departments which generated the majority of 

complaints throughout the year were, Locality Social Worker Teams: 17 and Community Adult 

Learning Disability Team (CALDT): 6. 

Below is a full breakdown of all Adult Health and Wellbeing complaints received throughout 2022/23. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning and 
Development, 1

Environmental Health and 
Enforcement, 8

Trading Standards and 
Licensing, 2

Street Scene, 113

Highways and Street 
Lighting, 17

Waste and Recycling, 43

Compliments

Planning and Development Environmental Health and Enforcement Trading Standards and Licensing

Street Scene Highways and Street Lighting Waste and Recycling

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18

NRT

Home First

Contracts

Stronger Communities

Direct Payment

Commissioning

Safeguarding

Mental Health

Homes for Ukraine

CALDT

Localities

1
1
1
1
1
1

2
2
2
2
2

3
3
3

4
4
4

6
6
6

17

Adults Health and Wellbeing Stage 1 Complaints

Page 33



 
 
 
 

 

Across the Directorate, 44% of all customer complaints were responded to within the corporate 

timescale of 10 working days. Most complaints in this area are of a complex and sensitive nature 

and can be difficult to carry out a full investigation and respond within the 10 working days. If a  

complaint response is going to take longer, customers are regularly contacted throughout and often 

invited to attend a face-to-face meeting to discuss their concerns on more of a personal level. This 

can again have an effect on the timescales as we allow the customer to choose a time that suits 

their requirements. 

 

 

  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Escalated Complaints 

AHWB received 8 escalated complaints during 2022/23. Of these, 5 were either upheld or partially 

upheld following a further investigation.  

Of all AHWB complaints that were received and responded to over the course of the year, just 5 

customers’ sought advice from the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman. 

Of these 5 customers, 1 investigation was discontinued by the LGSCO, 1 was not upheld, 1 was 

upheld and 2 cases are still active with a decision yet to be reached by the LGSCO. 

Compliments 

Doncaster Council have received in total 403 compliments, of which 94 were for teams across 

AHWB. The breakdown of the directorate is below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Not 
Upheld, 

23

Partially 
Upheld, 29

Upheld, 20

Complaint Outcomes

Not Upheld Partially Upheld Upheld

0
10
20
30
40

Within 10
Working

Days

11-20
Working

Days

20+ Working
Days

32
20 20

Working Days to Resolution

Stronger 
Communities / 
Wellbeing, 35

SMILE, 7

Adaptations, 1OT, 3Positive Steps, 1
Locality Teams, 10

Complex Lives, 1

HEART, 2

Miscellaneous, 34

Compliments

Stronger Communities / Wellbeing SMILE

Adaptations OT

Positive Steps Locality Teams

Complex Lives HEART

Miscellaneous

Page 34



 
 
 
 

 

 

Children, Young People and Families (CYPF) 

CYPF received 64 complaints in 2022/23, there were 12 complaints regarding the Travel Assistance 

Service around driver attitude, punctuality and staff training concerns when transporting children 

with additional needs. School Admissions received 10 complaints, where parents were concerned 

that their child had not been allocated a place in their preferred school or that their child had not 

received formal education for a period due to delays in processing. The Special Education Needs 

and Disability Service received 9 complaints, the main theme being delays in Education Health and 

Care Plans being finalised and issued and the affect this has on a child at school. 

Although the education department received 15 complaints, this area covers a wide range of 

services and a common theme was not identified within these. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Across the Directorate, 70% of all customer complaints were responded to within the timescale of 

10 working days. Complaints for this Directorate can be of a complex and sensitive nature and can 

be difficult to carry out a full investigation and respond within the 10 working days. 

 

   

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Not Upheld, 
14

Partially 
Upheld, 25

Upheld, 25

Complaint Outcomes

Not Upheld Partially Upheld Upheld

0

10

20

30

40

50

Within 10
Working Days

11-20 Working
Days

20+ Working
Days

45

15

4

Working Days to Resolution

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16

Libraries, Museum and Culture

Virtual School

Behaviour and Attendance

EHCP

SEND

School Admissions

Travel Assistance

Education

3

3

5

7

9

10

12

15

CYPF Stage 1 Complaints

Page 35



 
 
 
 

 

Escalated Complaints 

CYPF received 8 Stage 2 escalated complaints throughout 2022/23. Of these, 5 were partially 

upheld, 2 were not upheld and 1 remains open. 

4 customers sought advice from the LGSCO, of these, 2 were discontinued and 2 were upheld.  

 

Compliments 

Doncaster Council have received in total 403 compliments, of which 9 were for teams across CYPF.  

 

                                    

 

Children’s Social Care - Formerly Doncaster Children’s Services Trust (DCST)  

This section covers the complaints and compliments that were received by the areas formerly in 

DCST. Under statutory guidance Local Authorities must each year publish specific information in 

relation to Children’s Social Care complaints. 

During the reporting year 263 contacts were received in 2022/23, a reduction of 40 compared to the 
previous year. The majority of complaints were received by the Area Child Protection Service teams, 
followed by the Assessment Service. As these teams deal with child protection matters, which is an 
emotive subject and will involve the need for difficult conversations with families, it is expected that 
these may result in complaints being received. These teams also hold the highest proportion of 
cases.  
  
 
Total number of individual contacts received  
 

  2022/23 

Stage 1 40 

Representations (Informal) 57 

Withdrawn 90 

Corporate Complaint 76 

Total Contacts 263 

 
 
 
 

Libraries, 
Museums 

and Culture, 
7

Transport 
Services, 2

Compliments

Libraries, Museums and Culture Transport Services

Page 36



 
 
 
 

 
 
Source of complaints  
 

Relationship to Young Person / Child 
Statutory 

Complaints 

 
Corporate 

Complaints 

Children, Young People and Care Leaver 14 4 

Foster Carers 0 2 

Grandparents 1 7 

Legal Guardian 2 5 

Parent 23 46 

Other third Party 0 12 

Total 40 76 

 

The large majority of contacts received continue to be made by adults who were expressing their 

dissatisfaction with the service provided. There were 31 contacts received from young people whose 

ages ranged between 12 and 24. This is the highest number of contacts from young people since 

2017/18. There were less than 5 contacts from children and young people who were of a black and 

minority ethnic (BME) background, which is a similar number to 2021/22. 

Child/Young Person’s Contact Route   
 

Route 
Child In 

Care 
Care 

Leaver 
Child in 

Need 

Telephone Call with Customer 
Experience Manager 1 1 

 

Service Area 3 2 1 

Advocate 9 6 2 

Feedback Form  1  

Email 3 1 1 

Total 16 11 
 
4 

 
Route of how contacts have been received 
 

Route 
Number 

Received 

Advocate 17 

Email 85 

Face to Face Meeting 9 

Feedback Form 4 

Letter 4 

Local Government Ombudsman 1 

Phone Call with Customer Experience Team 75 

Service Area 46 

Online 22 

Total 263 

Page 37



 
 
 
 

 

    

Escalated Complaints 

During 2022/23, 14 requests were made for the complaint to be escalated to Stage 2, of these only 

1 was escalated. No complaints were escalated to Stage 3 during 2022/23.  

There were 10 complaints raised with the LGSCO, 7 of which the LGSCO decided not to investigate. 

Of the 3 investigated, 1 was not upheld and 1 upheld and 1 is still outstanding. The LGSCO 

recommended that a compensation payment of £550 were paid to the complainant of the upheld 

case.  

Compliments 

There were 74 compliments received during 2022/23. 

 

8. Compliments Across all Organisations 

 

                       

 
 
 
 

CDC, 403

DCST, 74

SLHD, 223

DCLT, 27

Compliments

CDC DCST SLHD DCLT

0
20
40
60

Within 10
Working

Days

11 - 20
Working

Days

20+ Working
Days

44
19

53

Working Days to Resolution 

Not 
Upheld, 79

Partially 
Upheld , 17

Upheld , 20

Complaint Outcomes

Not Upheld Partially Upheld Upheld

Page 38



 
 
 
 

 
City of Doncaster Council 
 
“A happy customer just wanted to pass on her thanks to the wonderful bin men that are still doing collections even 
through the sweltering heat and a, "Good job!" to them too.” 
 
“xxx Road's alleys were cleaned and the people did a fantastic job at cleaning them, he was very happy with the work. 
He wanted to pass on his compliments” 
 
“Tree surgeon came round, very good, kind and everything, explained that the item was a shrub and he would contact 
the shrub people and they would come and attend. This was on Tuesday and the customer wishes to express his thanks 
to the Tree surgeon. They came and done the job really quickly” 
 
“Cusworth Park is a pleasure to walk in and enjoy. Well done to the staff who maintain the park and its grounds, the 
park is used and enjoyed by generations alike” 
 
“I would like to compliment my green bin collection today. The bin should have been collected on Wednesday but due 
to extreme weather it didn't happen so my bin was returned to its designated spot on my drive. Today Friday my green 
bin team arrived and went above and beyond what was expected of them and retrieved my bin from the drive, emptied 
the said bin and returned it too it's spot. Please convey my thanks to today's team. It means everything to me.” 
 
“I was served by xxx in the Civic Buildings digital area with a blue badge. He was absolutely brilliant very helpful and 
patient with me. I would just like to say a big thank you to xxx for all his help. I wanted to let you know how great the 
service was.” 
 
“I would like to say how helpful xxx in the Council Tax dept has been. Nothing has been too much trouble, she is friendly 
and very helpful.” 
 
“Customer has rung today to say she is so pleased and thankful for the quick attendance to her streetlight being out.” 
 
“Resident has rang to thank xxx and his contractors and staff who he said have done an excellent job of road re surfacing 
on xxx lane in xxx. Resident said is very happy with the work that has been done” 
 
“I would like to thank xxx and xxx for helping me so much with my dumped rubbish request excellent customer service 
provided by them both and the other ladies on the reception :)” 
 
“You will never know how much you have been appreciated by us over all these years, than you so much please keep 
in touch with us” 
 

St Leger Homes of Doncaster 
 
“Customer called to say thank you so much to the man who has attended. He was lovely and professional and managed 

to save her as she had locked herself in the bedroom. The issue was handled quickly, and she can't thank us enough.” 

“Customer Access Officer did a great job, followed through with chasing up on an enquiry for the tenant and keeping 

her informed. The customer was very pleased and the Officer deserves the compliment.” 

“Customer called to give compliments and say thank you very much as we quickly sent someone to solve the problem 

with her heating” 

“Customer called to compliment the operatives who came out to her property, a joiner and plumber. She said both did 

a great job, they were absolutely amazing! They were polite, pleasant and she couldn't fault them or their work.” 

“Compliment for the guys who carried out work to the chimney today - they have done a great job. Also thanked all who 

had been involved in helping, from reporting it, to the work getting done - it has been a very professional service.” 

“Customer called to give compliments to the Gas team operative who attended to a repair for the boiler. The tenants 

heating come back on 5 minutes before the trade staff arrived. The member of staff repaired the part and then checked 

over the complete boiler.  The tenant commented that the trade staff has a “really nice way about her and goes out of 

her way, she was really lovely and her whole manner was brilliant".” 

 

Page 39



 
 
 
 

 

Doncaster Children’s Services Trust 
 
“Worker A is funny, she called me spiderman when I wanted her too. She made mummy put me on time out and i 
didn't like that so didn't like Worker A then. I like Worker A now she plays matching games with me at home. want to 
say thank you……” 
 
“This letter is to say thank you for what you and the team have done for me and dad, I am so happy that I am living 
with him now.   I am getting on with my schoolwork better, I am slowly but surely getting over the past but other than 
that me remembering things from the past I am doing amazing.   Thank you so so so much for what you have done.” 
 
“……Thank you for doing the work with me and supporting me.  Thank you for always talking to me and having the 
time.  It was nice working with you and it was nice you helping me and my mum.  …..  It has been a pleasure seeing, 
knowing you and thank you for absolutely everything you have done, with all my heart. 
 
“Overwhelmed that you’ll be leaving us but happy because I know I’m good enough as a mum!!  Thank you for 
everything you’ve done for us means a lot & I’ll still keep you updated even when case is closed!!” 
 
“Just felt the need to let you know that one of your team members Worker D, is not only an amazing, hardworking 
social worker but is also a pleasure to work with. She always listens and responds to concerns and makes us as a 
school feel well supported.   Worker D is an asset to children's services . WELL DONE” 
 
“I wanted to take this opportunity to thank you and everyone else that helping Person X and their family. They were 
genuine victims that really needed full support from all agencies involved. I must admit the response from all was 
great.  Person X also appreciated all the help provided. ……. Thank you so much for all your help and advice.” 

 
 

Doncaster Council Leisure Trust  
 

“Fantastic staff in the venue every single member of staff on duty in there this afternoon 4pm session was brilliant. In 
particular a gentleman named xxx, who when my nephew fell on the floor was straight down lying on the floor with him 
to make sure he was ok. Above and beyond belief.” 
 

“All leisure centres, splash parks, pools and other facilities would do well to see how professionally, compassionately, 
friendly and wonderfully the Dome pool facility is run. Your staff are truly excellent from the manager on duty on that 
afternoon and all the lifeguard and related staff” 
 
“My son is currently having swimming lessons at Armthorpe leisure centre.  During his sessions there was quite a bit of 
an issue with cancellations due to lack of swim instructors. However, they managed to get a new instructor for his class. 
I believe her name is xxx, I just wanted to say how wonderful she is. She always makes the sessions fun and had a 
laugh with the kids. My son started to really enjoy his lessons. I don't feel people praise others enough and I would say 
xxx definitely goes above and beyond for the children.” 
 
“xxx and xxx in the bowling area are a credit to your team, both are such lovely and welcoming members of staff. They 
were both so happy and willing to help with any queries we had and certainly made me, and my husband feel welcome 
and very likely to return in the future. well done guys.” 
 
‘” Following the Captain’s Day on Sunday (3rd), please pass on our massive thanks from all of the golfers competing. 
The feedback I received from golfers leaving the course was fantastic and the hard work they've done leading up to the 
day helped to provide the best conditions of the season so far. Please pass on our thanks to xxx, xxx and xxx, as well 
as xxx and xxx for their hospitality inside. It was well noted and recognised so I thought I should share the positive 
feedback with yourselves. Many Thanks” 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



 
 
 
 

 

9. Unreasonable Behaviour Policy 

In a small number of cases, we experience service users acting in an unreasonable way when 
accessing Council services. This could be when they have a complaint, pursuing their complaints in 
a way that can impede the investigation of their complaint, or residents who have not made 
complaints but take up a disproportionate amount of Council time and resources sending in emails 
or making phone calls.  

There are currently 16 individuals on the Unreasonable Behaviour register and the way in which 

their behaviour is being managed differs vastly, ranging from complete barring of attending the Civic 

Buildings One Stop Shop, due to acts of violence and aggression to appointing a Single Point of 

Contact to try to streamline communication from an individual in an effort to help them.  

The Customer Experience Officers have a tracking system to record all residents whose behaviour 

is deemed unreasonable and they are responsible for reviewing this decision within a reasonable 

timeframe, which is always set out to the resident from the onset. They are also responsible for 

keeping a central record of all letters/emails and other communication sent out or received from 

those residents relating to the policy. 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



19 July 2023 

By email 

Mr Allen 
Chief Executive 
Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council 

Dear Mr Allen 

Annual Review letter 2022-23 

I write to you with your annual summary of complaint statistics from the Local Government and 

Social Care Ombudsman for the year ending 31 March 2023. The information offers valuable 

insight about your organisation’s approach to complaints. As always, I would encourage you to 

consider it as part of your corporate governance processes. As such, I have sought to share this 

letter with the Leader of your Council and Chair of the appropriate Scrutiny Committee, to 

encourage effective ownership and oversight of complaint outcomes, which offer such valuable 

opportunities to learn and improve.  

The end of the reporting year, saw the retirement of Michael King, drawing his tenure as Local 

Government Ombudsman to a close. I was delighted to be appointed to the role of Interim 

Ombudsman in April and look forward to working with you and colleagues across the local 

government sector in the coming months. I will be building on the strong foundations already in 

place and will continue to focus on promoting improvement through our work. 

Complaint statistics 

Our statistics focus on three key areas that help to assess your organisation’s commitment to 

putting things right when they go wrong: 

Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find fault in an organisation’s actions, 

including where the organisation accepted fault before we investigated. We include the total 

number of investigations completed to provide important context for the statistic.  

Over the past two years, we have reviewed our processes to ensure we do the most we can with 

the resources we have. One outcome is that we are more selective about the complaints we look 

at in detail, prioritising where it is in the public interest to investigate. While providing a more 

sustainable way for us to work, it has meant that changes in uphold rates this year are not solely 

down to the nature of the cases coming to us. We are less likely to carry out investigations on 

‘borderline’ issues, so we are naturally finding a higher proportion of fault overall.  

Our average uphold rate for all investigations has increased this year and you may find that your 

organisation’s uphold rate is higher than previous years. This means that comparing uphold rates 

with previous years carries a note of caution. Therefore, I recommend comparing this statistic with 

Page 43



that of similar organisations, rather than previous years, to better understand your organisation’s 

performance. 

Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for organisations to put things right 

when faults have caused injustice and monitor their compliance with our recommendations. 

Failure to comply is rare and a compliance rate below 100% is a cause for concern.  

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority - In these cases, the organisation upheld the 

complaint and we were satisfied with how it offered to put things right. We encourage the early 

resolution of complaints and credit organisations that accept fault and find appropriate ways to put 

things right.  

Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your organisation with similar authorities to 

provide an average marker of performance. We do this for County Councils, District Councils, 

Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs. 

Your annual data, and a copy of this letter, will be uploaded to our interactive map, Your council’s 

performance, on 26 July 2023. This useful tool places all our data and information about councils 

in one place. You can find the detail of the decisions we have made about your Council, read the 

public reports we have issued, and view the service improvements your Council has agreed to 

make as a result of our investigations, as well as previous annual review letters.  

Your organisation’s performance 

During the year, there were several occasions where we were concerned about how your Council 

responded to our enquires. In one case, inadequate documentary evidence was sent to us, and in 

another, the comments about the complainant were unprofessional. In a third case, your Council 

failed to provide the information we asked for, requiring us to send a second enquiry, and in a 

further case the delays were so significant we took the unusual step of threatening to issue a 

witness summons before the information we requested was received.  

Concerningly, we also identified a case where the Council’s response to a resident’s original 

complaint was very poor.  

I ask that you take action to improve your Council’s responses to our enquiries; both in terms of 

timeliness and quality. If there is any support my office can provide to help improve the situation, 

please do let me know. 

Supporting complaint and service improvement 

I know that complaints offer organisations a rich source of intelligence and insight that has the 

potential to be transformational. These insights can indicate a problem with a specific area of 

service delivery or, more broadly, provide a perspective on an organisation’s culture and ability to 

learn. To realise the potential complaints have to support service improvements, organisations 

need to have the fundamentals of complaint handling in place. To support you to do so, we have 

continued our work with the Housing Ombudsman Service to develop a joint complaint handling 

code that will provide a standard for organisations to work to. We will consult on the code and its 

implications prior to launch and will be in touch with further details. 

In addition, our successful training programme includes practical interactive workshops that help 

participants develop their complaint handling skills. We can also offer tailored support and 

Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY WORK PLAN 2023/24 
 

 
OSMC H&ASC O&S CYP O&S R&H O&S  C&E O&S 

April 

Monday 17th April at 1pm 
Informal briefing session MS 

Teams 
 

Wednesday 19th April at 
4pm Informal Briefing  

Session MS Teams 

Monday 24th April 2023 
10am 

MS Teams 
Members briefing (CR) 

 

• Doncaster Delivering 
Together (DDT) Investment 
Plan (c ) 

 

• Transition of Children 
Social Care (c) 

• Update briefing on 
Government response 
Stable homes built on love 

• Improving Council 
housing stock and How St 
Leger Homes ensure VFM 
and work standards on 
improvement 
programmes; (c ) 

• Repairs Excellence ph 2 
(c) 

 

  
Thursday 20th April 2023, 

2pm, Informal Briefing 
Joint Meeting with C&E 

 
Thursday 20th April 2023, 

2pm, Informal Briefing 
Joint Meeting with CYP 

  • Play Parks Strategy 
 

• Play Parks Strategy 

  

Wednesday 26th April 2023 
at 12pm, Informal Briefing 

session, MS Teams – 
CANCELLED 

 
 

  

• Referrals – school 
experience update Social 
Care Front Door – 
meeting with 
headteachers 
 

• Update on overview of 
social care theme 
pressure points 

 
 

  
Thursday 27th April 2023 at 

4.30pm MS Teams or 
Council Chamber TBC 

 
 

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 7



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 
OSMC H&ASC O&S CYP O&S R&H O&S  C&E O&S 

  

• Youth Council Priorities 
(and for information 
Children and Young 
Peoples Plan).(c) 

• Youth Offer (c) 

  

  
 

Thursday 27th April 2023 at 
10am MS Teams Briefing 
Session 

  

   

• SEND inspection 
framework and 
Government response to 
Green Paper 

  

May 

 
Thursday 11th May 2023 at 

10am  
Council Chamber 

 

Tuesday 23rd May 2023 
 at 1.30pm 

Briefing Session  
MS Teams 

 

 

• Bentley and Rossington 
Primary Care estate 
developments ICB 

• Public Health Protection 
Update  

 
• Local Lettings Policy 

Gypsy and Traveller Pitch 
Allocation Policy 

 

 
Thursday 25th May 2023 

at 10am, MS Team 
   

 Work Planning    

     

     

June 

Thursday 1st June 2023 at 
10am  

Council Chamber 
 

Thursday 15th June 2023 at 
4pm, MS Teams 

Thursday 6th June 2023 at 
2pm, MS Teams 

Thursday 1st June 2023 
 at 2pm, MS Teams 

• Work Planning  • Work Planning • Work Planning • Work Planning 

P
age 48



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 
OSMC H&ASC O&S CYP O&S R&H O&S  C&E O&S 

Thursday 1th June 2023 at 
11am, Council Chamber (CM) 

  

Friday 30th June 2023 
at 10.30am 

Briefing Session 
MS Teams (CM) 

 

• Youth Justice Plan   
• Transport (invite to 

SYMCA) (c) 
 

 
Thursday 29th June 2023 at 

10am, Council Chamber 
(CM/AT) 

    

 

• Finance and Performance 
(invite to Cabinet Members 
Cole and Houlbrook) (c) 

• Agree Scrutiny Work Plan 

    

July 

 
Thursday 20th July 2023 at 

10am, MS Teams (CM) 

Thursday 6th July 2023 at 
10am, Members Briefing, 

Council Chamber (CR) 

Thursday 27th July 2023 at 
4.30pm, MS Teams (CR) 

Monday 17th July 2023 at 
1.30pm, Council Chamber 

(CR) 
 

• St Leger Homes future 
priorities and services (R&H 
O&S to be invited) (c) 

• Joint Strategic Needs 
Report:  

• Summary of specific 
areas of data  

• What’s new/ 
performance 
deterioration  (c) 

• Child Exploitation 

• Local Lettings Policy  

• Gypsy and Traveller Pitch 
Allocation Policy (c) 

 

Aug 

    
Thursday 3rd August 2023 at 
10am Briefing Session MS 

Teams (CM) 

    

• Community Assets – 
Mary Woollet Centre 

 

• Update on 
recommendations from 
the Corporate Assets 
Policy Review 

 

• Local Flood Risk 
Management Strategy – 

P
age 49



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 
OSMC H&ASC O&S CYP O&S R&H O&S  C&E O&S 

outline pre 5th October 
meeting 

 

• PSPO – Town Centre – 
pre cabinet decision 

 

 
Wednesday, 23rd August 

2023, 10am 
Sheffield Council (CR) 

   

 
• JHOSC (Chair only to 

attend) 
 

   

Sept 

Thursday 7th September 2023 
at 10am, Council Chamber 

(CR) 

Thursday 28th September 
2023 at 2pm, Council 

Chamber (CM) 

Wednesday 20th September 
2023 at 9.30am 
Site Visit  (CR) 

  

• Annual Compliments and 
Complaints (c)  

• Mental Health aged 18 to 
25 Invite PFG (c) 

• Site visit to Adwick Family 
Hub (c) 
 

  

Thursday 7th September 2023 
at 10am, Council Chamber 

(CR) 

 
   

 

• Fairness and Wellbeing 
Commission (c) 
 

 
   

  
 Monday 9th October 2023, 

12:30pm, MS Teams (CM) 
  

   

• Referrals – school 
experience update Social 
Care Front Door – 
meeting with 
headteachers (c ) 
 

  

Oct 
Thursday 12th October 2023 
 at 10am, Council Chamber 

(CR) 

 
Tuesday 31st October 2023 
at 4.30pm Council Chamber 

(CR) 

Thursday 19th October 2023 
at 10am, Council Chamber 

(CM) 

Thursday 5th October 
2023 at 10am Council 
Chamber (CM) 

P
age 50



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 
OSMC H&ASC O&S CYP O&S R&H O&S  C&E O&S 

• Finance and Performance 
(invite to Cabinet Member 
Blackham) (c) 

 

• SEND Strategy Pre-
Cabinet decision (c) 

• Child Poverty report on 
discussions from site visit 
(c) 

• Youth Council (c) 

• Housing - New regulatory 
regime for social housing 

 

• Safer Doncaster 
Partnership 
o Update from February 

position  
o Domestic and Sexual 

Abuse – May rollover 
to February main 
Crime and Disorder  

o Retail Crime 
 

• Flood Risk Management 
Strategy Pre-Cabinet 
decision (may include 
update on extreme weather 
– flooding/heatwave 
lessons learnt) 

Nov 

Thursday 2nd November 2023 
at 10am, Council Chamber 

(CR) 

Thursday 23rd November 
2023 at 10am  

Council Chamber (CM) 
   

•  

o Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw Hospital 
Trust and.  Areas for 
consideration to be 
agreed:  
o A&E position  
o Waiting lists  
o Staff Recruitment 

and Retention 
• Winter planning (c) 

   

 
Monday 27th November 2023 

at 2pm MS Teams TBC 
   

 
• Health and Well-being 

Strategy initial consultation 
   

Dec 

Wednesday  
13th December 2023  

at 9am, Council Chamber 
(CM) 

 
Thursday 7th December 2023 
at 4.30pm, Council Chamber 

(CR) 
 

Thursday 7th December 2023 
at 10am at Formal or briefing 

session (CM) 

P
age 51



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 

 
OSMC H&ASC O&S CYP O&S R&H O&S  C&E O&S 

• Finance and Performance 
(invite to Cabinet Members 
Blake and L Ball) 

 • Educational Outcomes (c)  
• Future Parks Scheme (c) 

• Street Scene (c) 

Jan  

Tuesday 23rd January 2024 at 
10am Briefing Session 

MS Teams/Council Chamber 
(CM/CR) 

   
Monday 22nd January 2024 at 

10am Council Chamber 
Briefing session TBC 

• Budget 

• Corporate 
   

• Waste and Recycling to 
include current/future 
contract and changes to 
regulations/impact on 
future green agenda 

 

Feb 

Thursday 1st February 2024 
at 10am, Council Chamber 

(CM/CR) 

Date to be confirmed 1st 
February cancelled required 

rescheduling 
  

Thursday 15th February 2024 
at 10am Crime & Disorder 

Committee, Council 
Chamber (CR) 

• Budget 

• Corporate Plan 

• Dementia – possible visit 
to local groups re:  access 
for people who suffer with 
dementia; 

• Integrated Care Board – 
invite 

  
• Safer Doncaster 

Partnership 

Thursday 22nd February 2024 
at 10am, Council Chamber 

    

     

March 

Thursday 28th March 2024 at 
10am, Council Chamber (CM) 

Thursday 21st March 2024 at 
2pm, Council Chamber (CM) 

Thursday 14th March 2024 at 
4.30pm, Council Chamber 

Thursday 7th March 2024 at 
2pm, Council Chamber 

 

• Finance and Performance 
(invite to Cabinet Members 
N Ball and G Jones) 

• Public Health Protection 
Annual Report 

• Child Neglect • Local Plan update  

POSSIBLE ISSUES FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION OR TO BE SCHEDULED 

P
age 52



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 

Quarterly performance 
18th July 2024 
(Invite to Cllrs Robinson and 
Nightingale) 

Joint Regional Health 
(JHOSC) – as required Chair 
only to attend 

Inclusion Update – Elective 
Home Education (December 
2023 or later/possible extra 
Member Briefing Session)  
 

Market and Corn Exchange 
update – possible invite to 
MAM 

 

 

SYAC  (South Yorkshire Airport 
City) 

Integrated Care Board – Date 
to be confirmed – specific 
approach from one of the 
following, to be agreed:  

Primary Care Access recovery 
plan for Doncaster area  

Pharmacy access, demands 
and national position   

Oral health to include Dentistry 
access, demands and national 
position 

Universal Services - how it is 
being impacted by cost of 
living and post pandemic 
school language and school 
ready – looked at this last 
year 
 

Housing Biodiversity retrofit 
moving towards net zero – are 
targets being met eg, 
renewable energy, electric 
charging in new housing, 
council housing.  Is the 
electrical infrastructure 
capable? 

 

 

Fairness and Wellbeing 
Commission TBC 

Consultations from 
Directorates as required 

- Adult social care peer 
review outcome 

EPIC 1. Housing: 

Housing crisis – aging 
population – are we satisfied 
that the Local Authority and 
partners are doing everything 
possible to increase availability 
(including supported living 
accommodation) 

 

 

 Age Friendly City – early input, 
plans and practicalities – how 
can the Authority drive this?   

 2. Regeneration and Economy: 

Connectivity – new technology 
availability, impact of working 
from home and town centre 
footfall 

 

 

 Invite to Aspire – Substance 
misuse – 2024/25 

 3.Biodiversity Net Gain, - how 
construction of new hosing 
development and industrial 
areas is impacting on flora and 

 

P
age 53



  ** 
Please note dates of meetings/rooms/support may change 

FP – Forward Plan Decision 
CR or CM– Officer Responsible 

 

fauna (Environment issue for C 
and E Panel) 

 
 Maternity care – possibly for 

the future 
 Transport – formal – October 

meeting? 
 

 

 Children and Young People – 
raft of issues on state of health 
– possibly joint with CYP Panel 
– Await Director input 

 

 

 

 
 Learning Disability and Autism 

Strategy review late 2023/24 
work plan programme 

 
 

 

 
 Health and Well-being Strategy 

late 2023 / early 2024 
 

 
 

BRIEFING NOTES/FOR CIRCULATION 

 
 

  Youth offer/Hubs – integrated 
offer – briefing note  

 

Housing Stock – no deposit for 
first time buyers impact on 
rights to buy and council 
housing stock? 

Overall impact on private setor 
availability 

 

 

   Outcomes from the OT medical 
assessment how it impacts on 
housing waiting lists (health 
panel undertook dedicated 
meeting in 2022/23) 

 

BRIEFING 

     

P
age 54



1 

DONCASTER METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN FOR THE PERIOD 1ST SEPTEMBER TO 31ST DECEMBER 2023 

 
The Forward Plan sets out details of all Key Decisions expected to be taken during the next four months by either the Cabinet collectively, The Mayor, 
Deputy Mayor, Portfolio Holders or Officers and is updated and republished each month. 
 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which is likely:- 
 (a)   to result in the Local Authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the 
        Local Authority's budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or  
 (b)   to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards or  
        electoral divisions in the area of the Local Authority; 
 (c)   any decision related to the approval or variation of the Policy and budget Framework that is reserved to the Full Council. 
 
The level of expenditure/savings which this Authority has adopted as being financially significant are (a) in the case of the revenue budget, gross full-year 
effect of  £250,000 or more b) in the case of capital budget, £1,000,000 or more in respect of a single project or otherwise across one financial year.or the 
decision has a significant impact on 2 or more wards. 
 
Please note in addition to the documents identified in the plan, other documents relevant to a decision may be submitted to the Decision Maker. Details of 
any additional documents submitted can be obtained from the Contact Officer listed against each decision identified in this plan. 
 
In respect of exempt items, if you would like to make written representations as to why a report should be considered in public, please send these to the 
contact officer responsible for that particular decision. Unless otherwise stated, representations should be made at least 14 days before the expected date 
of the decision. 
 
KEY 
Those items in BOLD are NEW  
Those items in ITALICS have been RESCHEDULED following issue 
of the last plan 
 

 

 
Prepared on: Thursday, 3rd August 2023 and superseding all previous Forward Plans with effect from the period identified above. 

 
Damian Allen 

Chief Executive 
 

P
age 55



2 

 
 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE CABINET 

 
 Cabinet Member For: 

 
Mayor - Ros Jones 
Deputy Mayor - Councillor Glyn Jones 
 
Councillor Lani-Mae Ball 
Councillor Nigel Ball 
Councillor Joe Blackham 
Councillor Rachael Blake 
Councillor Phil Cole 
Councillor Mark Houlbrook 
Councillor Jane Nightingale 
Councillor Sarah Smith 

- Budget and Policy 
- Housing and Business 
 
 Early Help, Education, Skills and Young People 
- Public Health, Communities, Leisure and Culture 
- Highways, Infrastructure and Enforcement 
- Children’s Social Care and Equalities 
 Finance, Traded Services and Planning 
- Sustainability and Waste 
- Corporate Resources. 
- Adult Social Care 

 
Some Decisions listed in the Forward Plan are to be taken by Full Council 
 
Members of the Full Council are:- 
 
Councillors Nick Allen, Bob Anderson, Duncan Anderson, Lani-Mae Ball, Nigel Ball, Iris Beech, Joe Blackham, Rachael Blake, Nigel Cannings 
Glenn Bluff, Laura Bluff, Bev Chapman, James Church, Gemma Cobby, Phil Cole, Jane Cox, Steve Cox, Linda Curran, Amiee Dickson, Susan 
Durant, Yetunde Elebuibon, Sue Farmer, Sean Gibbons, Julie Grace, Martin Greenhalgh, John Healy, Leanne Hempshall, Charlie Hogarth, Mark 
Houlbrook, Debbie Hutchinson, Barry Johnson, Glyn Jones, R. Allan Jones, Ros Jones, Jake Kearsley Majid Khan, Jane Kidd, Sue Knowles, 
Sophie Liu, Tracey Moran, John Mounsey, Emma Muddiman-Rawlins Tim Needham, David Nevett, Jane Nightingale, Thomas Noon, Ian Pearson, 
Andy Pickering, Cynthia Ransome, Rob Reid, Andrea Robinson, Dave Shaw, Glynis Smith, Sarah Smith, Gary Stapleton, and Austen White 
 

 
 

P
age 56



3 

 
WHEN 

DECISION IS 
EXPECTED TO 

BE TAKEN 

KEY DECISION TO BE 
TAKEN 

RELEVANT 
CABINET 
MEMBER 

DECSION TO 
BE TAKEN BY 

CONTACT 
OFFICER(S) 

DOCUMENTS 
TO BE 

CONSIDEED 
BY DECISION 

MAKER 

REASON FOR 
EXEMPTION – LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT ACT 

1972 SCHEDULE 12A 

4 Sep 2023 
 

To accept Government funds 
to support Integration and 
Homelessness Prevention 
work across all Wards. 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Budget and 
Policy 
Framework 
 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

David Hey, 
Integration and 
Partnerships 
Manager, 
Tel: 01302 736930 
David.Hey@doncast
er.gov.uk 

 
 

Open 
 
 

4 Sep 2023 
 

The Doncaster, Immingham 
& Grimsby (DIG) SuDS 
Retrofit Project (DEFRA 
Innovation Fund). To accept 
the allocation of £2m 
funding to deliver 
retrospective Sustainable 
Urban Drainage Systems 
(SUDS) within the Clay Lane 
and Scawthorpe localities of 
Doncaster 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Budget and 
Policy 
Framework 
Councillor 
Mark 
Houlbrook, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Sustainability 
and Waste 
 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones 
 

Adam Porter, Flood 
Risk Engineer  
adam.porter@donc
aster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

P
age 57



4 

6 Sep 2023 Rule 15 Urgent Decision: 
Children's Social Work 
Recruitment 

Councillor 
Rachael 
Blake, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Children's 
Social Care 
and 
Equalities 

Portfolio 
holder for 
Children’s 
Social Care, 
and Equalities 
 

Rebecca Wall, 
Assistant Director, 
Children’s Social 
Care,  

 Open 
 

Not before 
7th Sep 2023 
 

Acknowledgement of the 
acceptance of the Staying 
Close grant for 2023/24 & 
2024/25&d the agreement of 
the spending plan. 
Following approval of the 
spending plan, to delegate 
authority for its 
administration to the 
Director of Children's 
Services 

Councillor 
Rachael 
Blake, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Children's 
Social Care 
and 
Equalities 
 

Portfolio 
holder for 
Children’s 
Social Care, 
and Equalities 
 

Andy Hood, 
Strategic Lead for 
Practice 
Improvement  
andy.hood@donca
ster.gov.co.uk 
 

The Staying 
Close DfE bid 
and grant 
determination
. 
 

Open 
 
 

13 Sep 2023 
 

To approve and adopt Play 
Parks Infrastructure Policy. 
 
 

Councillor 
Nigel Ball, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Public Health, 
Communities, 
Leisure and 
Culture, 
Councillor Joe 
Blackham, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Highways, 
Infrastructure 
and 
Enforcement 

Cabinet 
 

Andy Maddox, 
Strategic and 
Service Lead leisure 
Services.  
andy.maddox@donc
aster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

P
age 58



5 

13 Sep 2023 
 

Quarter 1 2023-24 Finance 
and Performance Report 
 
 

Councillor Phil 
Cole, Portfolio 
Holder for 
Finance, 
Traded 
Services and 
Planning, 
Mayor Ros 
Jones, Mayor 
of Doncaster 
with 
responsibility 
for Budget and 
Policy 

Cabinet 
 

Matthew, Smith, 
Head of Financial 
Management Tel: 
01302-737663 
matthew.smith@don
caster.gov.uk, 
Sennette Wroot, 
Senior Strategy & 
Performance 
Manager Tel: 01302 
862533 
Sennette.Wroot@do
ncaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

13 Sep 2023 
 

St. Leger Homes Performance 
Report 2022/23 Quarter 1. 
 
 

Councillor 
Glyn Jones, 
Deputy Mayor, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Housing and 
Business. 

Cabinet 
 

Julie Crook Tel: 
01302 862705 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

13 Sep 2023 
 

Renewal of City Centre Public 
Spaces Protection Order. 
 
 

Councillor Joe 
Blackham, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Highways, 
Infrastructure 
and 
Enforcement 

Cabinet 
 

Bill Hotchkiss, Head 
of Service - 
Community Safety  
bill.hotchkiss@donca
ster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

13 Sep 2023 
 

Installation of fire shields 
suppression system at the 
Council's Residential/Park 
Homes sites. 
 
 

Councillor 
Glyn Jones, 
Deputy Mayor, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Housing and 
Business. 

Cabinet 
 

Chris Margrave, 
Director of Property 
Services, SLHD Tel: 
01302 862709 
Chris.Margrave@stle
gerhomes.co.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

P
age 59



6 

20 Sep 2023 
 

South Yorkshire Airport 
City: Programme update and 
financial approvals 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Budget and 
Policy 
Framework 
 

Cabinet 
 

Christian Foster, 
Strategic 
Programme Lead – 
Land Acquisition 
and Market 
Engagement  
christian.foster@do
ncaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Fully exempt 
3 
 

2 Oct 2023 
 

Acceptance of DfT Pothole 
Fund 
 
 

Councillor 
Joe 
Blackham, 
Portfolio 
holder for 
Highways, 
Infrastructure 
and 
Enforcement 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Budget and 
Policy 
Framework 
 
 

Wayne Southall, – 
Highways Asset 
Manager,  
wayne.southall@do
ncaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

11 Oct 2023 
 

Review and note progress 
against the Early Help 
Strategy, the associated 
implementation plan, and the 
current efficacy of the Early 
Help system. 
 
 

Councillor 
Lani-Mae Ball, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Early Help, 
Education, 
Skills and 
Young People, 
Councillor 
Rachael 
Blake, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Children’s 
Social Care 
and Equalities 
 

Cabinet 
 

Stephanie Douglas, 
Head of Service 
Early Years and 
Localities  
stephanie.douglas@
doncaster.gov.uk 
 

Early Help 
Strategy 2022-
2025 – 
Cabinet, 11 
May 2022 
 

Open 
 
 

P
age 60

mailto:christian.foster@doncaster.gov.uk
mailto:christian.foster@doncaster.gov.uk


7 

11 Oct 2023 
 

To implement the Local Flood 
Risk Management Strategy 
2023 - 2029 under the Flood 
and Water Management Act 
2010 for Doncaster. 
 
 

Councillor 
Mark 
Houlbrook, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Sustainability 
and Waste 
 

Cabinet 
 

Paul Evans, 
Drainage and Street 
Works Manager  
paul.evans@doncast
er.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

11 Oct 2023 
 

To accept £454,024 grant 
funding from Sustrans and 
£545,976 from the City Region 
Sustainable Transport 
Settlement, via South 
Yorkshire Mayoral Combined 
Authority  to deliver 
improvements to the Trans 
Pennine Trail between York 
Road & Melton Road. 
 

Councillor Joe 
Blackham, 
Porfolio holder 
for Highways, 
Infrastructure 
and 
Enforcement 
 

Cabinet 
 

Kerry Perruzza, 
Senior Transport 
PLanner  
Kerry.Perruzza@don
caster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

11 Oct 2023 
 

Smoking Cessation - 
Doncaster Service: Re-
commissioning. 
 
 

Councillor 
Nigel Ball, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Public Health, 
Communities, 
Leisure and 
Culture 
 

Cabinet 
 

Victoria Shakleton, 
Public Health 
Improvement Co-
ordinator, 
Tel: 01302 862146 
Victoria.Shackleton
@doncaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

11 Oct 2023 
 

Doncaster led Yorkshire and 
the Humber Inpatient 
Detoxification Consortium:  
award of contract using the 
negotiated procedure 
without prior publication 
worth £4.265m from 1st April 
2024 to 31st March 2029. 

Councillor 
Nigel Ball, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Public Health, 
Communities, 
Leisure and 
Culture 

Portfolio 
Holder for 
Public Health, 
Communities, 
Leisure and 
Culture 
 

Helen Conroy, 
Public Health 
Specialist Tel: 
01302 734571 
Helen.Conroy@don
caster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

P
age 61



8 

11 Oct 2023 
 

Doncaster Adults Substance 
Misuse Treatment and 
Recovery System: Award of 
contract using the 
negotiated procedure 
without prior publication 
worth £29.77m from 1st April 
2024 to 31st March 2029. 

Councillor 
Nigel Ball, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Public Health, 
Communities, 
Leisure and 
Culture 
 
 
 

Portfolio 
Holder for 
Public Health, 
Communities, 
Leisure and 
Culture 
 

Helen Conroy, 
Public Health 
Specialist Tel: 
01302 734571 
Helen.Conroy@don
caster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
3 
 

8 Nov 2023 
 

Equity and Inclusive Access to 
Learning for All: SEND and 
alternative Provision Model 
and Approach. 
 
 

Councillor 
Lani-Mae Ball, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Early Help, 
Education, 
Skills and 
Young People 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
 

Martyn Owen  
martyn.owen@donca
ster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

6 Dec 2023 
 

Quarter 2 2023-24 Finance 
and Performance Report. 
 
 

Mayor Ros 
Jones, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Budget and 
Policy 
Framework 
 

Cabinet 
 

Matthew, Smith, 
Head of Financial 
Management Tel: 
01302-737663 
matthew.smith@do
ncaster.gov.uk, 
Sennette Wroot, 
Senior Strategy & 
Performance 
Manager Tel: 01302 
862533 
Sennette.Wroot@d
oncaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

P
age 62



9 

6 Dec 2023 
 

St Leger Homes 
Performance Report 2022/23 
Quarter 2. 
 
 

Councillor 
Glyn Jones, 
Deputy 
Mayor, 
Portfolio 
Holder for 
Housing and 
Business. 
 

Cabinet 
 

Julie Crook Tel: 
01302 862705 
 

 
 

Open 
 
 

 

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes from the Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee held on 1st June 2023
	Minutes

	6 Annual Complaint and Compliment Report 2022/23
	This report recommends consideration and comment on the complaints and compliment report for the period 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023.
	4. Insight from complaints plays a key role in how we deliver the right outcome to our citizens and in continually improving our service delivery. As well as putting things right for the individual service user, we learn from complaints in order to im...
	6. The LGSCO carried out detailed investigations on 19 applications, 10 were upheld in the customers favour, 7 were not upheld and 2 are still being investigated. Of the 10 cases that have been upheld, in 100% of cases the LGSCO were satisfied that CD...
	7. In July we received the LGSCO’s Annual Letter outlining our performance in 22/23, in which the LGSCO have raised a number of concerns about how the council responded to some of their enquiries. We have been in contact with the LGSCO to gain further...
	8.   Summary of Complaint and Compliment Information
	10.There are no options to consider in this report. The main objective is to communicate the 2022/2023 complaint and compliment information for Doncaster Council and its partners.
	11. N/A
	13. The Council has a number of legal duties in relation to complaints, particularly in relation to Local Government Ombudsman findings. The Monitoring Officer has detailed duties in relation to findings of maladministration under the Local Government...
	14. There are no direct financial implications resulting from this report. If service improvements are required, these should be addressed by each service within existing budget levels.
	15. There are no specific HR issues raised in this report.
	19. This report will be considered by the Chief Executive, Directors, the Executive Board and the Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee.
	20. Appendix 1: Annual Complaint & Compliment Report 2022/2023
	Appendix 2: Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman Annual Letter
	GLOSSARY OF Acronyms and Abbreviations
	21.  AHWB: Adults Health and Well Being Directorate
	CALDT: Community Adult Learning Disability Team
	CDC: City of Doncaster Council
	CYPF: Children, Young People and Families
	DCLT: Doncaster Culture and Leisure Trust
	DCST: Doncaster Children’s Services Trust
	EHCP: Education, Health and Care Plan
	LGSCO: Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
	NRT: Neighborhood Response Team
	OT: Occupational Therapy
	SEND: Special Education Needs and Disabilities
	SLHD: St Leger Homes of Doncaster
	REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS
	Steven Jones, CDC Customer Experience Officer
	Charlotte Otter, CDC Customer Experience Officer
	Dawn Jones, CDC Customer Experience Manager
	Nicky Harvey, SLHD Customer Experience Service Manager
	Toni Illman, DCLT Head of Digital Innovation & Funding
	Dulcie Aulton, Head of Customer Service
	Lee Tillman – Assistant Director Policy, insight and Change

	Appendix 1 Annual Complaint and Compliment Report 2223
	The Council’s definition of a complaint is:
	“An expression of dissatisfaction, however made, about the standard of service, actions or lack of action taken by the Council or their staff, which affects a customer or a group of customers”
	All Councils have a duty to provide available access to residents to report concerns and must investigate and respond within a reasonable and defined timescale.

	Redacted Appendix 2 Annual LGSCO Letter 2223 (1)

	7 Overview and Scrutiny Work Plan and the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions
	Printed plan Forward Plan for the Period 1st September to 31st December 2023 Cabinet




